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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

New Mexico Finance Authority and
Mt. Hector H. Balderas
New Mexico State Auditor

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the New Mexico Finance Authority (Authority), 2 component unit of the
State of New Mexico, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively
comprise the Authotity’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. We
also have audited the financial statements of each of the Authority’s non-major
governmental funds, presented as supplementary information in the accompanying
combining fund financial statements, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, as
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Authority’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estitnates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the Authority are intended to present
the financial position and tesults of operations of only that portion of the financial
reporting entity of the State that is attributable to the transactions of the Authority.
They do not putpott to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the entite
State of New Mexico as of June 30, 2008, and the respective changes in the financial
position and cash flows, where applicable, theteof, for the year then ended, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

In our opinion, the financial statements tefetred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Authority as of and fot the year ended June 30, 2008, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof, for the year then ended, in
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New Mexico Finance Authority and
Mt. Hector H. Balderas
New Mexico State Auditor

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States-of
America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of each non-major
governmental fund of the Authority as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, and the
respective changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 29, 2008, on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over
financial reporting and out tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that tepott
is to describe the scope of out testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the intetnal
control over financial reporting ot on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in acgordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results 6f our audit.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, presented on pages 4 through 14, is not a
required part of the basic financial statements but is supplemental information requited
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). We have applied certain
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding
the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial
statements and combining and individual fund financial statements of the Authority.
The supplementaty schedules as listed in the table of contents are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements, including the Agency Funds - Schedule of Changes in Assets and Liabilities.
In addition, the accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented
for purposes of additional analysis required by the U.S. Office of Management and
Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and
is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and in our opinion is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

)7,7,\,,.., / ,,,p,,.g,ac

September 29, 2008
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The New Mexico Finance Authority’s (Authority) discussion and analysis is designed to assist the reader in
focusing on significant financial issues, provide an overview of the Authority’s financial activity, identify changes
in the Authotity’s financial position (ability to address future year challenges), identify any material deviations
from the financial plan, and identify any fund issues of concern.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the past yeat’s activities, resulting
changes and currently known facts; please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this
report and the Authority’s financial statements and notes which follow this section.

Financial Highlights

e The Authority’s government-wide net assets increased by $108,079,275 in fiscal year 2008 from 2007.
e The Authority’s total revenues increased by $125,041,170 in fiscal year 2008 from 2007.

e The total cost of all Authority progtams was $122,841,109, an increase of 28,627,230 over 2007.

Authority Highlights

The New Mexico Finance Authority, created in 1992, assists New Mexico governmental units, such as cities,
counties and State Governmental Departments and agencies in financing capital equipment and infrastricture
projects by providing loans at tax exempt rates and technical assistance. It does so through its six main
financing sources: Public Project Revolving Fund (PPRF), Water and Wastewater Grant Fund (W/WWGF), the
Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund (DWRLF), the Primary Care Capital Fund (PCCF), the Water Project
Fund, and State Buildings and Automation Project Financing. The Water Trust Fund is administered by the
Authority and the Authority provides staff support to the Water Trust Board.

The Authority’s cote program, the PPRF loan program, has provided financing for a variety of infrastructure
and equipment projects. In FY2008, the PPRF program made approximately 90 loans totaling approximately
$386.8 million, compared to 93 loans totaling approximately $211.3 million in FY2007.

In cooperation with the New Mexico Environment Department (NMED), the Authority administers the
DWRLF program, a federally funded loan program to provide local authotities with low-cost financing and
technical assistance in the construction, renovation or expansion of necessary drinking water facilities. In
FY2008, the DWRLF made seven loans totaling $34.9 million compared to three loans totaling $5.76 million in
FY2007. The FY2008 binding commitments numbered seven, approximating $27.9 million, compared to six
totaling approximately $23.8 million in FY2007.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis - continued

Authority Highlights - continued

The PCCF program helps qualified non-profit primary cate clinics in medically indigent and underserved areas
by providing low-cost financing for capital equipment and infrastructure projects. Since the inception of the |
program through June 30, 2008, the Authority Board has approved 17 loans totaling $11.25 million. In FY2008,
the PCCF program made two loans totaling $3.2 million.

- During FY2008, the Authority issued $391.2 million in bonds to provide reimbursement to the Public Préjects
Revolving Loan Fund and to retire borrowings incurred by the Authority in anticipation of issuing bonds.

The Authority’s grant program, the Water/Waste Water Grant Fund Program, was created in 1999 to help
qualified disadvantaged entities fund critical water and wastewater projects. In FY2008, four grants closed for a
total of $1,053,260, compared to seven grants totaling $4,281,350 in FY2007.

The 2001 Legislature passed the Water Project Finance Act to provide a financing mechanism to promote water
use efficiency, water resource conservation, and protection, fair distribution and the allocation of water to all
users. To this end, the Act created the Water Trust Fund and the Water Project Fund to provide the necessary
financial framewotk, and created a 15-member Water Trust Board. The Water Trust Fund is created in the State
Treasurer’s office to be invested by the State Investment Officer in 2 manner similar to land grant permanent
funds. Money in the Water Trust Fund may not be expended for any purpose, but an annual distribution is
made to the Water Project Fund.

The Water Project Fund is created in the Authority, which provides staff support to the Water Trust Board and
makes loans or grants to qualified entities for projects prioritized by the Board, approved by the Legislature and
on terms and conditions established by the Water Trust Board. The Authority is authotized to recover from the
fund the costs of administering the fund and originating loans and grants. In FY 2003, House Bill 88, as
amended, appropriated $22.5 million for identified regional projects, as well as an appropriation for future use to
the Water Project Fund in FY2004. In FY2004, the Water Trust Board reviewed 28 applications for funding.
Beginning with FY2005, funding comes from severance tax.

Ovetview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority’s basic financial statements.
The Authority’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This repozt also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements consist of a statement of net assets and a statement of activities.
These statements should report all of the assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses; and gains and losses of the
government. Fiduciary activities whose resources are not available to finance the government’s programs are
excluded from the government-wide statements.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis - continued

Overview of the Financial Statements - continued

Government-wide Financial Statements - continued

GASB #34 requires that infrastructure assets (roads, bridges, traffic signals, etc.) be valued and reported within
the Governmental column of the Government-wide Statements. Additionally, thie government must elect to
either depreciate these assets over theit estimated useful life ot develop a system of asset management designed
to maintain the setvice delivery potential. The Authority does not own a material interest in any infrastructure
assets and, therefore, is not required to implement this portion of GASB #34.

The government-wide financial statements of the Authority are divided into two categoties:

e Governmental Activities — All of the Authority’s stand alone bond financings and grant programs are
included in the governmental activities. State dedicated revenues and grant appropriations finance most
of these activities. The funds included in the Governmental Activities for the Authority are the Metro
Court Financing, the State Office Building Program Financing, the State Capitol Building Improvements
Program Financing, the University of New Mexico (UNM) Health Sciences Center Projects Financing,
the Workers” Compensation Administration Building Financing, the Water Projects Fund Financing, the
Water/Wastewater Grant Fund, the Local Governments Planning Fund, the Emergency Drought Relief
Grant Fund, the Local Government Transportation Fund (GRIP II), the Bio-Mass Datry Fund, the
Economic Development Financing and the Certificates of Participation Equipment Financings.

e Business —type Activities — The Authority’s revolving fund programs and operating fund are included in
the business-type activities. The funds included in the business-type activities are the Public Project
Revolving Fund, the Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund, the Primary Care Revolving Loan Fund, the
Behavioral Health Care Revolving Loan Fund, the Child Care Revolving Loan Fund, GRIP I
Administrative Fund, the Behavioral Health Capital Revolving Loan Fund, the GRIP Administrative
Fund, the New Markets Tax Credits Fund, the Energy Efficiency Fund and the General Operating
Fund.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements consist of a series of statements that focus on mformation about the major
governmental and proprietary funds. Governmental fund financial statements are prepared using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Proprietary fund financial
statements (enterprise funds) are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting.

The fund-financial statements are similar to the financial statements presented in the previous accounting model.
Emphasis here is on the major funds in either the governmental or business-type categories. Non-major funds -
(by category) or fund type are summarized into a single column.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis - continued

Overview of the Financial Statements - continued

Fund Financial Statements - continued

Governmental Fund Types:

Most of the Authority’s services are included in governmental funds, which focus on (a) how cash and other
financial assets that can be readily converted to cash flow in and out, and (b) the balances left at year-end that
are available for spending. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view and help the
uset determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to
finance the Authority’s programs. Since this information does not include the additional long-term focus of the
government-wide statements, reconciliation between the government-wide statements and the fund financial
statements is provided for governmental-type activities.

Special Revenue Funds — The Special Revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources (other than expendable trust or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes. The Authority’s funds classified as Special Revenue funds are the
UNM Cancer Center Project Fund, the Water/Wastewater Grant Fund, the Water Planning Fund, the
Emergency Drought Relief Fund, the Water Projects Fund (accounted for within the Water Trust Fund),
the Economic Development Fund, the Local Transportation Government Fund (GRIP II) and the Bio-

Mgss Dairy Fund.

Debt Service Funds - The Debt Sexrvice funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for,
and the payment of, general long-term obligation principal, intetest and related costs. The funds
classified as Debt Service funds are the UNM Health Sciences Fund, the Metto Court Financing Fund,
the Workers Compensation Building Financing Fund, the State Capitol Improvement Financing Fund
and the Equipment Certificate of Participation (COP) Funds.

Proprietary Fund Types:

Enterprise Funds — Enterprise funds are required to account for operations for which a fee 1s charged to
external uses for goods and setvices, and the activity is: a) financed with debt that is solely secured by a
pledge of the net tevenues, b) has third party requirements that the costs of providing services mncluding
capital costs be recovered with fees and charges, or c) has a pricing policy designed for the fees and
charges to recover similar costs. The funds classified as Proprietary or Entetprise funds are the General
Operating Fund, the Public Projects Revolving Fund, the Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund,
the Primary Care Capital Fund, the GRIP Administrative Fund, the Child Care Revolving Loan Fund,
the Behavioral Health Care Capital Fund, the Local Infrastructure Transportation Fund, the New
Markets Tax Credits Fund, the Energy Efficiency Fund and the Behavioral Health Care Revolving Fund.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis - continued

Overview of the Financial Statements - continued
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) should provide an objective and easily readable analysis of
the Authority’s financial activities based on cutrently known facts, decisions or conditions. It should provide an
analysis of the Authority’s overall financial position and results of operations to assist users in assessing whether
the financial position has improved as a result of the year’s activities. Additionally, it should provide an analysis
of significant changes that occur in funds and significant budget variances.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements consist of notes that provide information that is essential to a user’s
understanding of the basic financial statements.

Budgetary Comparisons

The Authority does not have any legally adopted budgets and, therefore, does not present any budgetary
statements.

Requited Supplementary Information (Other than MD&A)

In addition to the basic statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information concerning the Authority’s progress in funding its obligation to prov1de pension
benefits to its employees.



NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis - continued

Financial Analysis of the Authority as a Whole

Net Assets: Table A-1 summarizes the Authotity’s net assets for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008. FY2008
net assets for Governmental Activities and Business-type Activities were $28,241,533 and $197,914,492,
respectively. Total Authority net assets for fiscal year 2008 are $226,156,025. However, most of those net assets
are restricted as to the purposes for which they can be used.

Table A-1
The Authority’s Net Assets
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities ' Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Current and other assets 134,267,548 45,024,418 92,483,095 84,608,587 226,750,643 129,633,005
Capital and non-current

assets 2,175,384 2,396,886 1,432,582,634 955,034,773 1,434,758,018 957,431,659
Total assets 136,442,932 _ 47421304 _1,525,065,729  _1.039.643.360  1,661,508,661  _1.087.064.664
Current liabilities 6,482,888 8,187,482 323,519,447 154,767,837~ 330,002,335 162,955,319
Long-term liabilities 109,883,518 114,311,923 995,999,482 691,720,673 1,105,883,000 806,032,596
Total liabilities 116,366,406 122,499,405 1,319,518,929 846,4é8,51 0 1,435,885,335 968,987,915
Net Assets:

Invested in capital assets 113,333 145,503 264,652 292,268 377,985 437,771

Restricted 19,963,193  (75,223,604) 216,061,333 187,200,507 236,024,526 111,976,903

Unrestricted - - (10,246,487) 5,662,075 (10,246,487) 5,662,075
Total net assets 20,076,526  (75,078,101) 206,079,498 193,154,850 226,156,024 118,076,749
Total habilities and

net assets 136,442,932 _47.421.304  1,525,065,729  _1.039.643.360  1,661,508,661  _1.087.064.664
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis - continued

Financial Analysis of the Authority as a Whole - continued

Changes in Net Assets: The Authority’s change in net assets for fiscal year 2008 was an increase of
$108,079,275 (Table A-2). A significant portion, twelve percent (12%), of the Authority’s revenue comes from
Tax Revenue. Twelve percent (12%) comes from other operating grants and contributions, and six percent
(6%) from interest and investment income. Fifty-three percent (53%) comes from state general fund
appropriations, and charges for services and other revenue comprise the remaining seventeen percent (17%) of

total revenue.

Table A-2
Changes in the Department’s Net Assets
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Revenues:
Program $ 13,614,678 6,041,563 51,922,659 33,949,508 65,537,337 39,991,071
General 128,361,086 23,207,646 37,021,961 42,680,497 165,383,047 65,888,143
Total revenues 141,975,764 29,249,209 88,944,620 76,630,005 230,920,384 105,879,214
Expenses 39,895,843 29,628,373 82,945,266 64,585,506 122,841,109 94,213,879
Net revenues (loss) before
transfers and reversions 102,079,921 (379,164) 5,999,354 12,044,499 108,079,275 11,665,335
Transfers and reversions (6,925,294) (1.228,241) (6,925,294) 1,228,241 - -
(Decrease) increase in net
assets 95,154,627 © (1,607,405) 12,924,648 13,272,740 108,079,275 11,665,335
Net assets, beginning of year (75,078,101) (73.470,696) 193,154,850 179,882,110 118,076,749 106,411,414
Net assets, end of year $ 20076526  _(75078101) 206079498 193154850 226156024 118076749

The significant growth in governmental net assets is the resuit of the Authority becoming the administrator of
the Local Government Transportation Fund (otherwise known as GRIP II). This program is expected to fund
116 designated road projects throughout the State with total costs approximating $183 million. This program is
expected to be funded over 3 years with the Authority having recetved $87.8 million in funds during FY 2008.
Business-type (enterprise) activities continue to grow in terms of net assets because of the growth in loan
volume and bond issuances in the PPRF program and the continual growth in the loan portfolio of the
Authority’s other revolving loan programs.

10
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis - continued

Financial Analysis of the Authortity as a Whole - continued

Governmental-Type Activities

In FY 2008, revenues generated through State General Fund Appropriations increased by $103.2 million for the
govemmental-type activities. The majority of this increase, $87.8 million, is a result of receiving the seed money
to begin the Local Government Transportation Fund (GRIP II) and start to fund the projects authorized under
the legislation. Grant expenditures for this program amounted to $4.6 million but is expected to increase
significantly in FY 2009. The Authority’s total expenditures for governmental-type activities duting the fiscal
year 2008 were $40,094,539. The largest area of expenditutes, $26,173,676, 65% of the total, was in the area of

grant expense

Business Type Activities

The Authority’s total expenditutes for business-type activities during the fiscal year were $82,746,570. The
muajority of business-type expenditures, $43,769,243, 53% of the total, was in the area of debt service. As noted
above, expenditures and revenues increased due to the growth in the PPRF program.

Within the operating cost category, salaries and benefits comprise three percent (3%) of the total expenditures,
and all other operating costs such as professional services, repaits and maintenance, travel, supplies, etc., were
seven percent (7%) of the total expenditures.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Act the end of fiscal year 2008, the Authority has invested, net of depreciation, a total of $264,252 in capital
assets in business-type activities and $113,333 in capital assets for governmental-type activities. During FY
2008, capital outlay expenditures totaled $4,722. This amount represents payment of software upgrades to the
Authority’s new project database program which was completed in eatly FY 2008. More detailed information
about the Authority’s capital assets is presented in Note 7 to the financial statements.

G ASB #34 requires the recording and depreciation of infrastructure assets such as roads, bridges, traffic signals,
etc. The Authority does not own any infrastructure assets.

Long-Term Debt

"The Authority’s long-term debt is all outstanding bond issues related to the vatious programs administered by
the Authority. At the end of fiscal year 2008, the total amount outstanding was $1.16 million (excluding the
$1.520 billion in GRIP bonds which are administered by but are not a direct liability of the Authority). Motre
detailed information about the Authority’s long-term debt is presented in Note 8 to the financial statements.

D uring the fiscal year, the Authority issued $391.2 million in PPRF debt, primarily to directly fund loans,
reimburse the PPRF loan fund for loans already made or to advance refund certain earlier bond issues.

11
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis - continued

Financial Analysis of the Authority as a Whole - continued

Bond Ratings

The Authority’s bond ratings are:
Moody’s Aa2
Standard & Poor’s  AA+
Fitch AA

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The FY 2008 budget provides for the Authority’s administration of six programs paid from different sources of

revenue:

¢ Operation of the PPRF program, funded from Governmental Gross Receipts tax receipts and cigarette

tax revenue;

e Administration of the Water Trust Board, funded from interest earnings on the investments of the
Water Project Fund. '

® Water and Wastewater Grant Fund (W/WWGF) program operations, funded from the W/WWGF;

¢ Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund (DWRLF) program operations, funded from the federal
capitalization grant;

¢ The Local Governments Planning Fund, funded from the Water Planning Fund;

¢ The Economic Development Fund, funded from administrative fees and cigarette tax revenue.

The Authority’s primary operating budget for FY2008 was $6,667,847, compated to the FY2007 budget of
$6,649,027, 2 0.3% increase. This nominal change in the budget reflected some increased staffing level offset by
some efficiencies being realized through the addition of in-house counsel.

12
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis - continued

Contacting the Authotity’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customets, legislatots and investors and creditors
with a general overview of the Authority’s finances and to demonstrate the Authority’s accountability for the
money it receives. If you have any questions about this report ot need additional financial information, contact:

New Mexico Finance Authotity (NMFA)

207 Shelby Street
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87505

13
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Statement of Net Assets

AS OF JUNE 30, 2008

ASSETS:
Cash and equivalents:
Untestricted
Restricted
Receivables:
Tax revenue
Interest
Grant and other
Due from other funds (Note 4) [Internal Balances]
Administrative fees receivable
Loans receivable, net of allowance (Note 3)
Restricted asset - escrow
Capital assets, net of depreciation (Note 6)
Deferred costs, net of accunulated amortization
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:

Caurrent liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued payroll
Compensated absences (Note 12)
Notes payable (Note 9)
Funds held for others
Accrued interest
Due to other state agencies (Note 5)
Due to other funds (Note 5) [Internal Balances]
Debt service payable
Bonds payable, current, net (Note 8)

Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable, non-current, net of
bond discount/premijum (Note 8)

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt service
Program funds
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

21,961,097 68,229,027 96,190,124
102,852,041 300,904,459 403,756,500
643,692 7,424,228 8,067,920
18,210 8,347,617 8,365,827
239,530 6,958,365 7,197,895

- 1,110,138 1,110,138

73 708,654 708,727
2,552,905 1,040,185,642 1,042,738,547

- 80,877,446 80,877,446

113,333 264,652 377,985
2,062,051 10,528,699 12,590,750

- 51,442 51,442
136,442,932 1,525,590,369 1.662.033,301
138,328 1,971,625 2,109,953
11,702 100,160 111,862

. 200,236 200,236

1,704,789 - 1,704,789

- 197,721,700 197,721,700

615,564 3,269,007 3,884,571

- 1,075,831 1,075,831

1,110,138 - 1,110,138
5,294 61,090,830 61,096,124
5,712,000 58,082,000 63,794,000
9,297,815 323,511,389 332,809,204
107,068,591 995,999,482 1,103,068,073
107,068,591 995,999,482 1,103,068,073
116,366,406 1,319,510,871 1,435,877,277
113,333 264,652 377,985
(105,894,139) - (105,894,139)
125,857,332 216,061,333 341,918,665
- (10,246,487) (10,246,487)

20,076,526 206,079,498 226,156,024
136,442,932 1,525,590,369 1,662,033.301

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Statement of Activities

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
' Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities . Total

EXPENSES:

Capital financing $ 39,895,843 82,945,266 122,841,109
PROGRAM REVENUES:

Chatges for services - 38,327,432 38,327,432

Operating grants and contributions 13,614,678 13,595,227 27.209.905
NET PROGRAM EXPENSES (26,281,165) (31,022,607) (57,303,772)
GENERAL REVENUES:

Governmental gross receipts

and gross receipts taxes - 27,198,766 27,198,766

Investment earnings 4.702.048 9,823 195 14,525,243
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES 4,702,048 37,021,961 41,724,009
TRANSFERS

State General Fund Appropriations 123,659,038 - 123,659,038

Internal (6,925.294) 6,925,294 -
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 95,154,627 12,924,648 108,079,275
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF

FISCAL YEAR (75,078,101) 193,154,850 118,076,749
NET ASSETS, END OF FISCAL YEAR $ 20,076,526 206,079.498 226,156,024

See Independent Aliditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements. 16



AS OF JUNE 30, 2008

Economic
Development UNM Health Water Project
Fund Sciences Fund Fund
ASSETS:
Unrestricted:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,390,827 44,383 2,816,927
Recetvables:
Tax receivable - - -
Interest 11,971 - -
Other receivables - 239,530 73
Loans receivable 1,825,254 - 316,651
12,228,052 283913 3,133,651
Restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents held for
others by trustee:
Debt service - - -
Bond reserve - 1,326,996 -
Investments - - 6,740,826
TOTAL ASSETS $ 12228052 1,610,909 9.874477
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 11,208 - 21,600
Debt service payable - - 5,294
Notes payable - - -
Due to other funds 1,013,246 - 28,106
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,024,454 - 55,000
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for debt service - 1,610,909 -
Unreserved: .

Special revenue funds 11,203,598 - 9,819,477
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 11,203,598 1,610,909 9.819.477
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 12,228 052 1,610,909 9.874.477

17
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Other Total
LGTF Governmental Governmental
(GRIP II) Funds Funds
- 14,708,960 27,961,097
- 643,692 643,692
- 6,239 18,210
- - 239,603
- 411,000 2,552,905
- 15,769,891 31,415,507
- 645,398 645,398
- - 1,326,996
86,071,771 8,067,050 100,879,647
86,071,771 24,482,339 134,267,548
1,273 115,949 150,030
- - 5,294
- 1,704,789 1,704,789
52,961 15,825 1,110,138
54,234 1,836,563 2,970,251
86,017,537 11,389,885 99,018,331
- 11,255,891 32,278,966
86,017,537 22,645,776 131,297,297
86,071,771 24,482,339 134,267,548

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds



NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Assets

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds

(Governmental Fund Balance Sheet)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of

Net Assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities ate not financial
resources and, therefore, ate not reported in the funds:

The cost of capital assets is
Accumulated depreciation is

Total capital assets, net of depreciation
Bond 1ssuance costs are included in the curtent period and,
therefore, not capitalized as assets in the funds, amortized over
the life of the respective bond. Deferred costs, net, are
Long-term and certain other liabilities, including bonds payable,
are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are
not reported as liabilities in the funds.

Long-term and other liabilities at year end consist of:

Bonds payable, net of premium of $1,899,591
Accrued interest payable

Total long-term and other liabilities

Net assets of governmental activities (Statement of Net Assets)

$

$

131,297,297

262,399
(149,066)

113,333

2,062,051

(112,780,591)
(615,564)

(113,396,155)

20,076,526

=————————dereeA

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Grant revenue
Interest on loans
Interest on investments
Other revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Administrative fee
Professional services
Salaries and fringe benefits
In-state travel
Out-of-state travel
Maintenance and repairs
Operating costs
Grant expenses

Capital outlay

Debt service - principal

Debt setvice - interest

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
State General Fund appropriations
Transfers (to) from other funds
Transfers (to) other state agencies
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, June 30, 2007

FUND BALANCES, June 30, 2008

Economic

Development UNM Health
Fund Sciences Fund
307,068 -

- 66,787

307,068 66,787

- 142,411

42,052 48,886
130,675 -
8,811 -
5,085 .
1,490 .
41,798 -
1,957 -

- 3,220,000

- 1,322,315

231,868 4,733,612
75,200 (4,666,825)
7,100,000 9,505,445
- (1,640,888)
- (3,647,633)
7,100,000 4,216,924
7,175,200 (449,901)
4,028 398 2,060,810
11,203,598 1,610,909

See Indepéndent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Other Total
Water Project LGTF Governmental Governmental
Fund (GRIP II) Funds Funds
13,614,446 - - 13,614,446
- - 28,605 335,673
430,665 2,867,859 1,001,064 4,366,375
232 - - 232
14,045,343 2,867,859 1,029,669 18,316,726
- - 35,141 177,552
126,058 1,111 166,526 384,633
221,742 42,908 108,992 504,317
10,209 331 2,262 21,613
670 1,962 364 8,081
1,950 277 1,539 5,256
50,589 7,645 27,284 127,316
19,207,567 4,596,088 2,369,981 26,173,636
1,521 - 1,244 4,722
- - 2,486,000 5,706,000
- - 4,144,149 5,466,464
19,620,306 4,650,322 9,343,482 38,579,590
(5,574,963) (1,782,463) (8,313,813) (20,262,864)
7,847,868 87,800,000 11,405,725 123,659,038
- - (5,284,406) (6,925,294)
- - (3.376,935) (7,024,568}
7.847.868 87,800,000 2,744.384 109,709,176
2,272,905 86,017,537 (5,569,429) 89,446,312
7,046,572 - 28,‘2154,205 41,850,985
9,819,477 86,017,537 22,645,776 131,297,297

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Net Changes in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds ,
(Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances) $ 89,446,312

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are

different because:

In the Statement of Activities, certain operating expenses - compensated
absences (sick and annual leave) are measured by the amounts earned duting
the year. In the Govetnmental Funds, however, expenditures for these items
are measured by the amounts of financial resoutces used (essentially, the
amounts actually paid). The dectease (increase) in the liabilities for the

fiscal year was:

Govetnmental Funds report principal payments on debt service

as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities,

these payments are reported as a reduction of the liability.

In the current period, these principal payment amounts were 5,706,000

Interest on long-term debt in the Statement of Activities differs from

the amount reported in the Governmental Funds because interest is

recorded as an expenditure in the funds when it is due, and thus requites

the use of current financial resources. In the Statement of Activities,

however, interest expense is recognized as the interest accrues,

regardless of when it is due. The additional interest réported in the

Statement of Activities is the net result of two factors: accrued interest

on bonds and notes payable. The decrease in the liability for the fiscal year was 52,274

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements. 22



NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities - continued

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Change from prior year in amortization of bond issuance costs:

Deferred issuance costs FY07 (p. 17 PY) : $ 2,251,383
Deferred issuance costs FY08 (p. 15 CY) 2,062,051
(189,332)

Change from prior year in amorization of bond premium/discount:

Amortization of bond premium/discount FY07 (p. 72 PY) 2,071,134

Amortization of bond premium/discount FY08 (p. 71 CY) 1,899,591

171,543

Governmental Funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. In the cutrent
period, these amounts were:

Capital outlay 4,722

Depreciation expense (36,892)

Excess of depreciation expense over capital outlay (32,170)

Decrease in capital assets -
Change in net assets of governmental activities

$ _95154,627

(Statement of Activities)

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements. 23



AS OF JUNE 30, 2008

New Mexico

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.

Drinking Water GRIP
Public Project Revolving Loan Administrative Primary Care
Operating Fund Revolving Fund Fund Fund Capital Fund
ASSETS:
Current:
Cash and cash equivalents - 54,928,491 7,757,830 1,961,825
Receivables:
Tax revenue - 7,394,802 3,460 - 25,96¢
Interest - 8,236,381 109,542 - -
Grant and other - 3,720,220 1,897,283 1,340,862
Due from other state agencies - - - - -
Due from other funds - 2,152,874 - -
Administrative fees receivable - 574,782 13,311 120,407 -
Total current assets - 77,007,550 9,781,426 3,423,094 25,966
Loans receivable, net of allowance - 1,001,731,515 30,907,764 - 7,176,671
Securities - - - - -
Restricted assets - cash and cash equivalents - 284,148,652 11,369,863 - 2,141,699
Escrow - 80,877,446 - - -
Capital Assets:
Depreciable property and equipment, net - 188,450 11,798 53,629 1,339
Deferred charges - 10,528,699 - - -
Other assets - 51,442 - - -
Total non-current assets - 1,377,526,204 42,289,425 53,629 9,319,709
TOTAL ASSETS - 1,454,533.754 52,070,851 3,476,123 9,345,675
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities - 1,627,309 309,808 9,397 4,416
Accrued payroll, fringe benefits
and compensated absences - 271,336 6,064 15,735 1,208
Accrued interest payable - 3,248,343 - - -
Debt service payable - 60,488,368 250,746 - 344,498
Funds held for others - 196,132,082 115,736 - 1,223,090
Due to other state agencies - - 1,075,831 - -
Due to other funds - 281,851 52,734 82,247 118,307
Line of Credit - - - - -
Bonds payable, current, net - 57,957,000 - - -
- 320,006,289 1,810,919 107,379 1,691,519
Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable, noncurrent, net - 993,874,482 - - -
- 9 482 - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 1,313,880,771 1,810,919 107,379 1,691,519
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets - 188,450 11,798 53,629 1,339
Restricted for:
Program funds - 140,464,533 50,248,134 - 7,652,817
Unrestricted - - - 3,315,715 -
TOTAL NET ASSETS - 140,652,98 50,259,932 3,369,344 7,654,156
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS = 1,454.533.754 52,070,851 3,476,723 9,345,675
24



NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

of Net Assets - Enterprise Funds

Child Care
Behavioral Health Revolving Loan Cigarette Tax Energy
Capital Fund Fund Local Road Fund Revenue Bond NM Tax Credits Efficiency Total
165,350 - 3,415,530 - - - 68,229,026
- - - - - - 7,424 228
1,694 - - - - - 8,347,617
- - - - - - 6,958,365
- - - - - - 2,152,874
154 - - - - - 708,654
167,198 - 3,415,530 - - - 93,820,764
369,692 - - - - - 1,040,185,642
23,549 275,058 - 2,945,638 - - 300,904,459
. - - - . - 80,877,446
2,341 1,790 1,508 - 2,694 1,102 264,651
- - - - - - 10,528,699
- - - - - - 51,442
395,582 276,848 1,508 2,945,638 2,694 1,102 1,432,812,339
562,780 276,848 3,417,038 2945638 2,694 1,102 1,526,633.103
1,301 - - - 19,395 - . 1,971,626
447 129 306 - 5,125 47 300,397
- - - 20,664 - - 3,269,007
7,218 - - - - - 61,090,830
792 250,000 - - - - 197,721,700
- - - - - - 1,075,831
3,648 82,784 1,839 - 404,894 14,432 1,042,736
- - - 125,000 - - 58,082,000
13,406 332,913 2,145 145,664 429,414 14,479 324,554,127
- - - 2.125.000 - - 995,999,482
- - - 2,125,000 - - 995,999,482
13,406 332,913 2,145 2,270,664 429,414 14,479 1,320,553,609
2,341 1,790 1,508 - 2,694 1,102 264,651
547,033 (57,855) 1,493,404 471,402 - (14,479) 200,804,989
- - 1,919,981 203,572 (429,414) - 5,009,854
549374 (56,065) 3,414,893 674,974 (426.720) (13.377) 206,079,494
562,780 276,848 3.417,038 2945638 2,694 1,102 1,526,633.103

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

New Mexico

Drinking Water GRIP
Public Project Revolving Loan Administrative Primary Care
Operating Fund Revolving Fund Fund Fund Capital Fund
OPERATING REVENUES:
Tax tevenue - 27,169,340 - - -
Federal grant revenue - - 13,595,226 - -
Administrative fees - 2,786,246 59,173 2,161,017 -
Interest on loans - 32,144,961 441,718 - -
Intetrest on investments - 8,436,481 807.203 62,652 295.078
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES - 70,537,028 14,903,320 2,223 669 295,078
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Grant expense - 24,900 - - -
Bond issuance costs - 543,018 - - -
Administrative fees - 132,638 - - -
Professional services - 2,953,663 220,777 232,293 82,116
Salaries and fringe benefits - 1,907,427 204,503 363,680 51,642
In-state travel - 34,379 5,163 11,168 1,246
Out of state travel - 20,129 4,656 5,779 787
Utilities - - - - 119
Maintenance and repairs - 19,499 6,834 4,521 458
Supplies - 1,509 3,859 5,043 115
Operating costs 1 557,939 131,638 94,382 9,527
Depreciation - 33,647 9,197 12,471 160
Debt setvice - interest expense - 43,639,509 - - -
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1 49,868,257 586,627 729337 146170
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) €)) 20,668,771 14,316,693 1,494,332 148,908
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Miscellaneous tevenue - - 3,460 - 25,966
TOTAL NON—INTEREST EARNINGS :
(EXPENSE) BEFORE TRANSFERS 1) 20,668,771 14,320,153 1,494,332 174,874
TRANSFERS:
Transfets in (out) (2,091,026) 6,657,839 2,089,080 (861,480) -
Transfers from (to) other state agencies - (25,991,563) (4,984,752) - -
Transfers from (to) local governments - - - - -
TOTAL TRANSFERS 2.091,02 (19,333,724 2.8 2 (861,480) -
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS (2,091,027) 1,335,047 11,424,481 632,852 174,874
TOTAL NET ASSETS, June 30, 2007 2,091,027 139,317,936 38,835,451 2,136,492 7,479,282
TOTAL NET ASSETS, June 30, 2008 - 140,652,983 50,259,932 3.369.344 7,654,156
26
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
in Fund Net Assets - Enterprise Funds

Child Care
Behavioral Health Revolving Loan Cigarette Tax Energy
Capital Fund Fund Local Road Fund Revenue Bond NM Tax Credits Efficiency Total
- - - - - - 27,169,340
- - - - - - 13,595,226
989 - 722,444 - - - 5,729,869
10,884 - - - - - 32,597,563
7,025 10,603 94,540 109,611 - - 9,823,193
18,898 10,603 816,984 109,611 - - 88,915,191
- - 181,475 - - - 206,375
- - - - - - 543,018
- - - - - - 132,638
5,064 2,785 2,330 168 79,823 1,568 3,580,587
20,584 4,840 8,331 - 136,589 957 2,698,553
823 23 692 - 5,880 68 59,442
614 (56) (20) - - - 31,889
i 7 18 - 602 2 825
276 161 149 - 1,172 65 33,135
695 ()] - - - - 11,213
5,174 2,740 3,937 - 38,874 1,227 845,439
320 160 160 - 320 160 56,595
- - S 129,734 - - 43,769,243
33,627 10,652 197,072 129,902 263,260 4,047 51,968,952
(14,729) 49) 619,912 (20,291) (263,260) (4,047) 36,946,239
- - - - - - 29,426
(14,729) (49) 619,912 (20,291) (263,260} (4,047) 36,975,665
38,215 - 875,000 217,666 - - 6,925,294
- - - - - - (30,976,315)
38215 - 875,000 217,666 - = (24,051,021)
23,486 49 1,494,912 197,375 (263,260) (4,047) 12,924,644
525,888 (56,016} 1,919,981 477,599 (163,460) (9.330) 193,154,850
549,374 (56,065) 3.414,893 674,974 (426,720 (13377) 206,079,494
27
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash paid for employee services
Cash paid to vendors for services
Bond issuance costs
Interest expense paid
Grants awarded
Tax revenue
Cash received from federal government for revolving loans
Interest income received
Administrative fees received

NET CASH (USED) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITES:

Operating transfers, net
Cash paid to subrecipients for services
Cash provided (used) by funds held for others

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Securities
Escrow
Loans funded
Loan payments received
Bonds issued
Payment of bonds
Debt service
Line of credit
Capital asset purchases

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS, June 30, 2007

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS, June 30, 2008

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
TO NET CASHED USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES -
OPERATING INCOME:
Adjustments to operating income:
Depreciation and amortization
Net transfers
(Increase) decrease in prepaids and receivables
Increase (decrease) in payables and other accrued liabilities

NET CASH (USED) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

New Mexico

Public Project Drinking Water GRIP
Operating Revolving Revolving Loan Administrative
Fund Fund Fund Fund

$ (210,737) (4,726,801) (204,967) (354,408)
(2,149,468) (6,775,058) (213,690) (292,758)

- (543,018) - -

- (33,451,903) - -

- (24,900) - -

- 27,169,340 - -

- - 13,234,531 -

- 40,330,584 1,248,921 62,652

1,914,100 102,328 59,173 1,876,999

(446,105) 22,080,572 14,123,968 1,292,485
- 6,657,839 2,089,080 (861,480)

- (25,796,810) (4,984,752) -

- 121,863,290 (279.814) -
- 102,724,319 (3,175,486) (861,480)

- 2,715,627 - -

- (386,074,195) (10,298,773) -

- 56,098,407 962,520 -

- 391 ,24_15,000 - -

- (37,660,000) - -

- 17,152,452 51,994 -

- (31,338,974) - -
- (19,547) - (1,247)
- 12,118,770 (9,284,259) (1.247)

(446,105) 136,923,661 1,664,223 423,758

446,105 202,153,482 17,463,470 1,538,067

$ = 339.077.143 19,127,693 1,961,825

$ 1) (1,335,047) 11,424,481 632,852

- 33,647 9,197 12,471

(2,091,026) 19,333,724 2,895,672 861,480
1,914,100 (7,187,467) 240,241 (284,018)

(269,178) 8,565,621 (445,623} 69,700

$ 446,105 22,080,572 14,123,968 1,292 485

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.

28



NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

t of Cash Flows - Enterprise Funds

Combined S
Primary Care Behavioral Child Care Cigarette NM Energy
Capital Health Capital Revolving Loan Local Road Tax Revenue Tax Credits Efficiency
Fund Fund Fund Fund Bond Fund Fund Total

(25,336) (20,631) (4,910) (8,798) - (132,188) 909) (5,689,685)
(14,249) (17,122) 5,284 (7,235) (167) 124,689 1,120 (9,338,654)
- - - - - - - (543,018)
- - - - (130,882) - - (33,582,785)
- - - (181,475) - - - (206,375)

- - - - - - - 27,169,340

- - - - - - - 13,234,531

289,550 18,066 10,603 94,540 109,611 - - 42,164,527

- 989 - 722,444 - - - 4,676,033

249,965 (18,698) 10,977 619,476 (21,438) (7,499) 211 37,883,914

- 38,215 - 875,000 217,666 - - 9,016,320
- - - - - - - (30,781,562)
1,200,778 25 - - - - - 122,784,279
1,200,778 38,240 - 875,000 217,666 - - 101,019,037
- - - - - - - 2,115,621
(3,200,000) - - - - - - (399,572,968)
327,108 31,296 - - - - - 57,419,331

- - - - - - - 391,245,000
- - - - (125,000) - - (37,785,000)

284,698 - - - - - - 17,489,144
- - - - - - - (31,338,974)
(217) (463) (316) (299 - (559) (211) (28.979)

. (2,588471) 30,833 (376) (299 (125,000) (559 (211) 143,181
(1,137.728) 50,375 10,601 1494177 71228 i (8.058) - 139,046,132
3,279,427 138,524 264,457 1,921,353 2,874,410 - - 230,079,295
2,141,699 188,899 275,058 3415530 2,945,638 (8,058) - 369,125,427
174,874 23,486 (49) 1,494,912 197,375 (263,260) (4,047) 12,345,576
160 320 160 160 - 320 160 56,595

- (38,215) - (875,000) (217,666) - - 19,868,969
(5,527) 157 - - - - - (5,322,514)
80,458 (4,446) 10,866 (596) (1,147) 255,441 4,098 8,265,194
249,965 (18,698) 10,977 619,476 (21,438) (1,499) 211 37883914

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds

AS OF JUNE 30, 2007
Agency
_ Funds
ASSETS:
Cash at Trustee:
Program funds $ 143,033,858
Expense funds 237,132,982
Bond reserve funds : _ 6,000
TOTAL ASSETS $ 380,172,840
LIABILITIES: '
Accounts payable $ 3,923,929
Debt service payable 329,378,837
Funds held for the New Mexico Department of Transportation 46,870,074
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 380,172,840

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements. 30



NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

NATURE OF ORGANIZATION

The Laws of 1992, Chapter 61, as amended, cteated the New Mexico Finance Authority (Authority). The
purpose of the New Mexico Authority Act (Act) is to create a governmental instrumentality to coordinate
the planning and financing of state and local public projects, to provide for long-term planning and
assessment of state and local capital needs and to improve cooperation among the executive and legislative
branches of state government and local governments in financing public projects.

The Authority’s governing board is composed of twelve members. The State Investment Officer; the
Secretary of the Department of Finance and Administration; the Secretary of Economic Development; the
Secretary of Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources; the Secretary of the Environment Department; the
Executive Director of the New Mexico Municipal League and the Executive Director of the New Mexico
Association of Counties are ex-officio members of the Authority with voting privileges. The Governot,
with the advice and consent of Senate, appoints to the Authority Board, the chief financial officer of an
institution of higher education and four members who ate residents of the state. The appointed members
serve at the pleasure of the governor.

The Authority is not subject to the supervision or control of any other board, bureau, department or agency
of the state, except as specifically provided in the New Mexico Finance Authority Act. The Act specifically
excludes the Authority from the definition of “state agency” or “instrumentality” in any other law of the
state, unless specifically referred to in the law.

The Attorney General’s Opinion dated December 23, 1992, concludes that the Authority is an agency of the
state at Jeast for certain purposes. The Opinion subjects the Authority to the Open Meetings Act and
concludes that the rates and basis for reimbursement under the Per Diem and Mileage Act apply to
Authority members. The Opinion excludes the Authority from other sections of the Per Diem and Mileage
Act, the Procurement Code and DFA vouchering requirements.

Bonds and other obligations issued by the Authority under the provisions of the Act are not a debt or
liability of the state or any subdivision thereof.

The Authority 1s a governmental entity in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 39. The Authority is a governmental entity because it was established by statute; its
relationship with other governmental entities; the governmental make-up of the Authority’s governing
board; sources of tax revenue and its ability to issue tax-exempt debt.

The financial reporting entity as defined by GASB No. 39 consists of the primary government, organizations for
which the primary government is financially accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting
entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. This definition of the reporting entity is based
primarily on the notion of financial accountability as the “cornerstone of all financial reporting in government”.
The Authority is, however, considered to be a discretely presented component unit of the State of New

Mexico. The Authority does not have any component units.
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements - continued

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements for the Authority have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for governmental
accounting and financial repotting. Pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standard Board
(FASB) issued after November 30, 1989, are not applied in the preparation of the financial statements of
the proprietary fund type in accordance with GASB No. 20. The GASB periodically updates its
codification of the existing Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, which, along
with subsequent GASB pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for
governmental units. The more significant of these accounting policies are described below.

The Authority has implemented the provisions of GASB No. 34. As a part of this statement, there
1s a reporting requirement regarding the local government’s infrastructure (roads, bridges, etc.) The
Authority does not own any infrastructure assets and, therefore, is unaffected by this requirement.

e Basic Financial Statements ,

The basic financial statements include both government-wide (based on the Authority as a whole) and
fund financial statements. The new reporting.model focus.is on either the Authority as a whole, or
major individual funds (within the fund financial statements). Both the government-wide and fund
financial statements (within the basic financial statements) categorize primary activities as
governmental activities. In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, the governmental activities
column is presented on a consolidated basis by column, and is teflected on a full accrual, economic
resoutces basis, which incorporates long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and
obligations.

¢ Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include both government-wide (based on the Authority as a whole) and
fund financial statements. Both the government-wide and fund financial statements (within the basic
financial statements) categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type. The
government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities)
report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component
units, if any. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which notmally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges
for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate
component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements - continued

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

e Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements - continued

The government-wide statement of activities reflects both the gross and net cost per functional
categoty, which are otherwise being supported by general government revenues. The statement of
activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and
capital grants. The program revenues must be directly associated with the function. The Authority
includes only one function (infrastructure financing). Inter-fund balances have been eliminated in the
government-wide financial statements within government funds and enterprise funds. Non-exchange
transactions, in which the Authority gives (ot receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal
value in exchange, include gross receipt taxes, grants and appropriations. On an accrual basis, revenue
from gross receipts taxes is recognized when the undetlying transaction has occurred. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider

have been met. :

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are cleatly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, setvices ot privileges provided by a given function or
segment; and 2) grants and contributions that are restticted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements ate provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter ate excluded from the government-wide financial statement. Major
mdividual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The governmental fund statements are presented on a cutrent financial resource and modified accrual
basis of accounting. This presentation is deemed appropriate to (a) demonstrate legal compliance, (b)
demonstrate the soutce and use of liquid resoutces, and (c) demonstrate how the Authority’s actual
experience conforms to the budget or fiscal plan. Since the governmental fund statements are
presented on a different measurement focus and basis of accounting than the government-wide
statements’ governmental column, a reconciliation is presented on the page following each statement,
which briefly explains the adjustment necessary to transform the fund based financial statements into
the governmental column on the government-wide presentation.

The Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement

focus and the accrued basis of accounting. The fund financial statements should be presented using
the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements - continued

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

e Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting

The accounts of the Authority are organized on the basis of funds and account groups -each of which
is considered a separate accounting entity. The operaﬁons of each fund are accounted for with a
separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenues,
expenditures or expenses and other financing sources or uses. Government resoutces ate allocated to,
and accounted for, in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the
means by which spending activities are controlled. The various funds are summarized by type in the
accompanying financial statements. The various funds are reported by generic classification within the

financial statements.

GASB No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria for the determination of major funds based on a percentage
of the assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund category or governmental
and enterprise combined.

The following fund types and account groups are used by the Authority:

Governmental Fund Types - All governmental fund types are accounted for on a spending or
financial flow measurement focus. Only current assets and current liabilities are generally
included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund balance (net current assets) is considered
a measure of available spendable tesources. Governmental fund operating statements present
increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other
financing uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of
sources and uses of available spendable resources during a period.

Due to their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition for governmental fund
types is limited to exclude amounts represented by non-current liabilities. Since they do not
affect net current assets, such long-term amounts are not recognized as governmental fund
type expenditures or fund liabilities. All government funds are non-reverting.

The Authority reports the following major governmental funds:

¢ Economic Development Fund
e UNM Health Sciences Fund
e Water Project Fund

e LGTF (GRIP II)
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements - continued

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

e Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting - continued

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of
specific revenue soutces (other than expendable trust or major capital projects) that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Special Revenue Fund - State Building Program-Cigarette Tax. This fund accounts for

the proceeds from bonds, the debt setvice requirements of the bonds and receipts from
the State of New Mexico cigarette taxes, for the purpose of financing building projects in
New Mexico. Section 7-1-6.11, NMSA, 1978 Compilation, provides for a distribution to
the Authority of seven and one-eighth petrcent of the net receipts attributable to the
cigatette tax, with the first distribution made as of August 1, 1993. The cigarette tax
monies were used by the Authority to finance the construction of a cancer research
center and sell revenue bonds in compliance with the New Mexico Finance Authority
Act, in the amount of six million dollars ($6,000,000) for the purpose of designing,
constructing, equipping and furnishing an addition to the Cancer Center at the University
of New Mexico. The bonds were issued on July 11, 1996. The cigarette tax proceeds
distributed to the New Mexico Finance Authority pursuant to Section 7-1-6.11 NMSA
1978 are appropriated to the Authority to be pledged irrevocably for the payment of the
principal or interest on the bonds, or any payments for refunding or redemption
premiums on the bonds, and for paymeht of the costs incurred by the Authority related
to authorization, issuance and sale of the bonds.

The Laws of 1993, Chapter 358, authorizes funds in the State Building Program-Cigarette
Tax, in excess of the amount necessary for payment of principal and interest on
outstanding bonds and necessary resetves or sinking funds, to be transferred to any other
account of the Authotity as needed for purposes of the New Mexico Finance Authority
Act.

Special Revenue Fund - Water and Wastewater Project Grant Fund. This grant fund is
to use the net proceeds of the sale of bonds, pursuant to the provisions of Section 6-21-
6.1, NMSA, 1978 Compilation, for the purposes of water and wastewater projects and
payable from the public project revolving fund. Money in the water and wastewater
project grant fund is approptiated to the Authority to make grants to qualified entities for
water and wastewater public projects pursuant to special authorization by law for each
project, and to pay administrative costs of the water and wastewatet project grant
program. Any unexpended or unencumbered balances remaining at the end of the fiscal
year shall not revert to the State’s general fund.
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements - continued

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

¢ Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting - continued
Special Revenue Funds - continued

Special Revenue Fund - Water Project Fund. This fund was created with the passage of
Senate Bill 169 during the 2001 Legislative Session. The putpose of this fund is to
provide for water use efficiency, resource consetvation and protection and fair
distribution and allocation of water. The Water Project Fund was created in the
Authority and consists of distributions made from the Water Trust Fund and payments
of principal and interest on loans approved for watet projects. The fund also consists of
any other money appropriated, distributed ot otherwise allocated to the fund for the
purpose of supporting water projects pursuant to the provisions of the Water Projects
Finance Act.

Special Revenue Fund - Water and Wastewater Planning Grant Fund. The 2002 New

Mexico Legislature authotized the Authotity to establish the new Water and Wastewater
Planning Grant fund. This fund will provide grant money to qualified entities on a
sliding scale for the creation of planning documents such as preliminary engineering
teportts, feasibility studies and master plans. Each grant must not exceed $25,000 and
must be repaid if the project in the planning document eventually receives funding. The

' initial capitalization of $1 million was provided from the 2002A PPRF revenue bonds
issued on July 2, 2002.

Special Revenue Fund - Emergency Drought Water Program. Executive Order 02-19

declared a statewide drought disaster due to the severe statewide drought conditions.
The Water Trust Board has been designated as the coordinator of all assistance requests
from public water systems during the dtought. Based on initial requests, the Water Trust
Board may direct a strike team to investigate the water problem. Strike team members
include State Engineet’s personnel and other technical personnel as deemed necessary.
The strike team will assess the situation and provide the Water Trust Board with an
action plan to immediately alleviate the problem through the next legislative session. If
the action plan implementation is beyond local control and requires the resources of the
State, the Water Trust Board will recommend the project to the Governor for disaster
funding. Each emergency disaster declaration by the Governor will release $750,000 in
funding to alleviate the emergency conditions.
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements - continued

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

e Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting - continued

Special Revenue Funds - continued

Special Revenue Fund - Economic Development. This fund was cteated with the-
passage of Senate Bill 932 - Statewide Economic Development Finance Act (SWEDFA)

during the 2003 legislative session. The putpose of this fund is to provide a
comptehensive package of financing tools to stimulate economic development projects
and fill the gap between public and ptivate financing.

Special Revenue Fund — Local Government Transportation Fund. In 2007, New Mexico

Legislature authorized the establishment of the Local Government Transportation Fund
within the New Mexico Finance Authority. This fund provides funding for 116 local
government transportation projects as approved by the legislature. The Fund consists of
general fund appropriations and severance tax bond proceeds appropriated to the fund in
fiscal years 2007 through 2009. Projects are funded based upon project readiness. The
interest-earnings in the fund are subject to appropriation by legislature.

Special Revenue Fund — Dairy Biomass Loan Fund. This fund was created by the 2006
Legislatute to convert dairy waste to energy statewide. The Authority is working with the
New Mexico Energy, Minerals and Natural Resoutces Department to identify biomass
ptojects that support renewable energy development.

Debt Service Funds - Debt Setvice Funds are used to account for the accumulation of
resoutces for, and the payment of, general long-term obligation principal, interest and related
costs.

Debt Service Fund - Metro Court Financing Fund. The Laws of 1998, Chapter 6,

authorized the Authority to issue revenue bonds for the construction of a new
Bernalillo County Metropolitan Court facility. The bonds were issued on August 1,
2001. The pledged revenues for the project consist of a portion of the docketing fees
and costs collected by various courts of the state, and a portion of certain costs and
penalty assessments to be collected upon conviction from persons convicted of
violating any provision of the motor vehicle code involving the operation of a motot
vehicle. There was an additional bond issuance in September 2002 (2002A).

Debt Service Fund - Workers’ Compensation Financing Fund. This fund accounts for

the proceeds from bonds, the debt service requirements of the bonds and receipts
from the State of New Mexico workers’ compensation assessments, for the purpose of
financing an office building for the Workers” Compensation Administration.
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements - continued

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

e Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting - continued

Debt Service Fuﬁds - continued

Debt Service Fund - Workers’ Compensation Financing Fund - continued. :
The Laws of 1993, Chapter 367, Section 73, effective April 8, 1993, as amended by the

Laws of 1994, Chapter 91, authorized the Authority to issue and sell revenue bonds in
an amount not to exceed $3,500,000 for planning, designing, constructing, equipping
and furnishing a state office building for the Workers’ Compensation Administration
that complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. The 1994 amendment
authorized the Authority to issue and sell additional revenue bonds in an amount not
to exceed $2,500,000 when the property control division of the General Services
Department certifies the need for issuance of the bonds. The bond proceeds are for
acquiring land and making site improvements for the aforementioned state building.
The parties have entered into a joint power agreement to accomplish this purpose. A
total of $4,310,000 of bonds were issued during July 1996. The first $.40 of the
workers’ compensation assessment imposed pursuant to Section 52-5-19, NMSA, 1978
is distributed to the Authority and is appropriated to be pledged irrevocable for
payment of principal, interest, any premium-and expenses related to the issuance and
sale of the bonds. Revenue distributed to the Authority shall be deposited in a special
bond fund or account and any money remaining in the fund at the end of calendar
quarter, after all current obligations and any sinking fund requirements are met, shall be
transferred to the workers’ compensation administration fund upon request. Also,
according to the joint powers agreement in effect, any surplus bond proceeds and
interest will be used for the project.

Upon payment of all principal and interest and any other obligations or expenses
related to 1ssuance of the bonds, the Authority shall certify to the Taxation and
Revenue Department that all obligations have been fully discharged and direct the
Department to cease payments of workers” compensation assessment fee revenue to

the Authority.

Debt Service Fund - State Capitol Improvement Financing Fund. The Laws of 1997,

Chapter 178, authorized the Authority to issue and sell revenue bonds in an amount
not to exceed $10,155,000 for the purpose of repairing, remodeling, constructing and
equipping a state building located adjacent to the State Capitol in Santa Fe known as
the New Mexico State Library, and for relocation-associated renovations in the State
Capitol. A total of $510,000 of revenue bonds were issued on May 17, 1999 and
$8,805,000 of revenue bonds were issued on June 1, 1999, for a total outstanding of
$9,315,000. Monthly, all income and distributions creditable to the capitol buildings
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements - continued

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

e Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting - continued

Debt Setvice Funds - continued

Debt Service Fund - State Capitol Improvement Financing Fund- continued.
repair fund shall be distributed by the State Treasurer to the Authority, and are

appropriated to the Authority to be pledged itrevocable for the payment of the bonds.

Debt Service Fund - Equipment Loan Fund. The Authority has established an
equipment loan program under the Authority’s legislation to assist local government
entities in the financing and purchase of equipment. The Authority has issued the
following Pooled Equipment Certificates of Participation. In October 1994, the
Authority issued $646,000 aggregate principal amount of its Pooled Equipment
Certificates of Participation, Series 1994A, the net proceeds of which were loaned to
ten local governments in the state. On August 29, 1995, the Authotity issued
$4,288,000 aggregate principal amount of its Pooled Equipment Program Cettificates
of Participation, Series 1995A, the proceeds of which were loaned to 18 governmental
entities in the state. On August 29, 1995, the Authotity issued $2,904,000 aggregate
principal amount of its Equipment Program Certificates of Patticipation, Seties.1995B,
the net proceeds of which were loaned to the City of Las Cruces. On December 3,
1996, the Authority issued $1,820,000 aggregate principal amount of its Pooled
Equipment Program Certificates of Participation, Series 1996B, the net proceeds of
which were loaned to various governmental entities in the state. The loans atre assigned
to a trustee by the Authority and the only sources of repayment are various sources of
local government revenues secured by intercept agreements and paid to the trustee.
These certificates are not an obligation of the Authority. The funds are maintained by
the trustees and are held in the Authority’s and the local entity’s names.

Debt Service Fund - State Office Building Financing Fund. The Laws of 2001, Chapters

166 and 199, authorized the Authority to issue revenue bonds for the financing of
acquisition, construction, equipping and otherwise improving land and buildings for
the General Services Department of the State of New Mexico. The initial project
consists of 1) purchasing the National Education Association Building on South
Capitol Street in Santa Fe, New Mexico, 2) paying the costs of planning, designing,
constructing and furnishing a new office building with integrated parking at the West
Capitol Complex on Cerrillos Road in Santa Fe, New Mexico, and 3) purchasing land
adjacent to the District Five Office of the New Mexico State Highway and
Transportation Department on Cerrillos Road in Santa Fe, New Mexico. In addition,
to the extent proceeds of the Bonds are not used for the projects listed in the
preceding sentence, the Project may include the acquisition of the Public Employees
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements - continued

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
¢ Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting - continued

Debt Service Funds - continued

Debt Service Fund - State Office Building Financing Fund - continued.

Retirement Association Building on Paseo de Peralta in Santa Fe, New Mexico. The
Genetal Setvices Department of the State is tesponsible for obtaining any required
approvals to proceed with the project and to negotiate the purchases of a portion of
the project and to pursue the completion of the project. The Ditector of the Property
Control Division of the General Setvices Depattment has certified that the project is
needed and can be completed within a reasonable time. Planning and negotiations
have begun by the Property Control Division to complete the project.

Debt Service Fund - UNM Health Sciences Fund. Chapters 341, Laws of New Mexico
2003 (the Authorizing Act) authorized the State of New Mexico to distribute amounts
equal to 1) 14.37% of the net receipts of a cigarette excise tax to the Authority on
behalf and for the benefit of the Univetsity of New Mexico Health Sciences Centet,
and 2) 15.79% of the net Cigarette Tax receipts collected each month for bond credit
enhancement purposes. The Authorizing Act also petmitted the Authority to issue
Cigarette Tax revenue bonds in an amount not to exceed $60,000,000 for the purpose
of designing, constructing, equipping and furnishing additions and improvements to
the University of New Mexico Hospital and the Cancer Research and Treatment
Center, both at the University of New Mexico Health Sciences Center in Albuquerque,
New Mexico.

Proprietary Fund Types - The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination
of operating income, changes in net assets, financial position and cash flows. The accounting
ptinciples generally accepted in the United States of Ametica applicable are those similar to
businesses in the private sector. The Authority does not apply FASB pronouncements issued
after November 30, 1989, to its proprietary funds or business-type activity accounting. The
only proprietary fund types the Authority has are enterprise funds.

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise funds are required to account for operations for which a fee is
charged to external users for goods and services, and the activity is a) financed with debt that is
solely secured by a pledge of the net revenues, b) has third party requirements that the cost of
providing services, including capital costs, be recovered with fees and chatges, or c) has a
pricing policy designed for the fees and charges to recover similar costs. The enterprise funds
are as follows: .
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements - continued

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

¢ Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting - continued
Enterprise Funds - continued
Entetprise Fund - Operating Fund. The operating fund of the Authority accounts for

all financial resources of the Authority, except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

Enterprise Fund - Public Projects Revolving Fund. This fund is used to account for
governmental gross receipts tax (GGRT) proceeds received under the Laws of 1994,
Chapter 145, Section 1. The Authortity receives an amount equal to 75% of the net
receipts attributable to GGRT putrsuant to Section 7-1-6.1, NMSA 1978. Of the
GGRT revenues directed to the Authority’s Public Project Revolving Fund which are
not used to pay debt service on PPRF obligations, an aggregate amount not to exceed
35% shall be available for approptiation by the Legislature to the following funds for
local infrastructure financing: the water and wastewater project grant fund, the
wastewater facility construction loan fund, the rural infrastructure revolving loan fund,
the solid waste facility grant fund and the drinking water state revolving loan fund.
The remaining GGRT revenue deposited may be granted or loaned directly by the
Authority to qualified entities, or “leveraged” by pledging the revenue stream to the
issuance of bonds and granting or lending the bond proceeds. All projects to be
financed must be approved by the Legislature.

Enterprise Fund - New Mexico Drinking Water State Revolving L.oan Fund. The New

Mexico Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund Act (Act) created the New Mexico
Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund (DWRLF), which is administered by the
Authority. The Authority is charged with establishing, in cooperation with the New
Mexico Environment Department, a loan program to provide local authorities with
low-cost financial assistance in the construction of necessary drinking water facilities.
Money deposited into the DWRLF may be used: 1) to make loans at or below the
market rate for eligible purposes for terms no longet than twenty years after
completion of construction (loans for disadvantaged communities are the exception
and may be for terms up to thirty years); 2) to buy or refinance a municipality’s debt
obligation, if combined with a new project, if the debt was incurred after July 1, 1993;
3) to guarantee or buy insurance for a local obligation to improve credit access or
market rates; 4) as a source of revenue of security for the payment of principal and
interest on revenue or general obligation bonds issued by the State, if the proceeds will
be deposited in the DWRLE; and 5) to earn interest on the amounts deposited into the
DWRLF. The Act states further that grants from the federal government or its
agencies, allotted to New Mexico for capitalization of the DWRLF, shall be directly
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements - continued

L SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
e Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting - continued

Enterprise Funds - continued

Enterprise Fund - New Mexico Drinking Water State Revolving L.oan Fund - continued.
deposited into the DWRLF, and the Authority shall maintain full authority for the
operation of the DWRLF, in accordance with applicable federal and state law.

Enterprise Fund - Primary Care Capital Fund. The Laws of 1994, Chapter 62, created
the Primary Care Capital Fund to provide funding for capital projects to eligible entities

in order to increase health care services i rural and other health care under-served
areas in the state. The revolving fund, to be administered by the Authority, shall
consist of appropriations, loan repayments, gifts, grants, donations and interest earned
on investment of the fund. Money in the fund shall not revert at any fiscal year end.
The State of New Mexico Department of Health and the Authority administer the loan
programs and contracts for services established pursuant to the Primary Care Capital
Funding Act. The Department of Health, in conjunction with the Authority, shall
adopt regulations to administer and implement the Act. Laws of 1994, Chapter 147,
appropriated $5,000,000 for the Primary Care Capital Fund for rural primary care
capital funding. Laws of 1994, Chapter 6, appropriated $95,000 to the Department of
Health to contract with the Authority for assistance to the Department and
administration of the Primary Care Capital Fund.

Enterprise Fund - GRIP Administrative Fund. The purpose of this fund is to record

the administrative expenditures and fee revenue related to the New Mexico
Department of Transportation (NMDOT) Series 2004A, B and C bond issues
completed by the Authority on behalf of the NMDOT. Putsuant to a memorandum of
understanding between the Authotity and the NMDOT, the Authority is to receive an
annual fee of 25 basis points on the outstanding debt on the 2004A Bonds for issuing
the NMDOT debt, managing the outstanding debt portfolio and investing the proceeds
until drawn down by the NMDOT.

Enterprise Fund - Child Care Revolving Loan Fund. Created by the 2003 Legislature,
the Child Care Revolving Loan Fund partners the Authority with the New Mexico
Children, Youth and Families Department to provide low-cost financing to licensed
child care providers. The program received $250,000 in funding from an allocation of
federal funds during fiscal year 2004.
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Notes to Financial Statements - continued

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

e Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting - continued

Enterprise Funds - continued

Enterprise Fund - Behavioral Health Capital Fund. This fund was created with the
passage of Senate Bill 248 in the 2004 legislative session. The purpose of this fund is to

support the physical improvement, repair, safety and maintenance of licensed child care
facilities throughout New Mexico by providing long-term, low interest funding through 2
revolving loan fund, so as to ensure availability of healthy and safe teaching
environments. '

Enterprise Fund - Cigarette Tax Revenue Bond — Behavioral Health Capital Fund
(BHCF). The BHCF was set up to provide funding for capital projects to non-profit

providers to increase health care services to sick and indigent patients. The 2004
Legislature created this fund to provide low cost financing to non-profit behavioral
health clinics for their capital equipment and infrastructure projects. The Authotity was
authorized-to 1ssue up to $2,500,000 in bonds, secured by a portion of the net cigarette
tax receipts collected by the State and distributed to the Authority. A private placement
of $2,500,000 in bonds was issued during fiscal year 2006.

Enterprise Fund — Local Transportation Infrastructure Fund (Local Road Fund). This
fund was created to provide local government not eligible for Federal funding, whose
needs have not been met by the existing Local Government Road Fund, with grants
and low cost financial assistance for transportation projects. The program is jointly
administered by the Authority and the NMDOT. The NMDOT determines feasibility
and priority of recommended projects and the Authority makes loans and grants to the
recommended projects. Grants are capped at 25 percent of the project cost.

Enterprise Fund — New Market Tax Credits Fund. During FY 2007 a team comptised

of staff from the Authority, the New Mexico Economic Development Depattment and
the City of Albuquerque successfully submitted an application for the federal New
Market Tax Credits. Though it’s a Limited Liability Company, Finance New Mexico
LLC, the Authority has received an allocation of $110,000,000 to encoutage capital
infusion throughout New Mexico by providing private business greater access to
capital in rural or undeserved areas of the state.. The status of these allocations is
generally made in October and it 1s anticipated that the program would go through a
“ramp up” period during the temainder of FY 2008. The fund was created to
accumulate costs associated with the application process and other program start-up
costs. Ultimately, this program will be accounted for and operated as an LLC separate
and distinct from the Authority.
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Notes to Financial Statements - continued

1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
¢ Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting - continued

Entetprise Funds - continued

Enterprise Fund — Energy Efficiency Fund. This fund was established as an innovative

financing mechanism for state agencies, universities and public schools to fund and
implement renovations to existing facilities that will promote renewable energy and
other energy efficiency improvements to these facilities. This fund will be jointly
administered by the Authority and the Department of Enetgy, Minerals and Natural
Resoutces. The Authority will issue PPRF bonds that are backed by State GRT and
sized to the cash flow energy savings generated from the projects. This progtam is in 2
start-up phase and as yet, has not issued any bonds.

The Authority’s fiduciary funds are agency funds. Since by definition these assets are being held for
the benefit of a third party and cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the government,
these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide statements. The Authority’s agency fund
is used to account for cash at trustee related to-certain bond issues that the Authority completed on
behalf of the NMDOT (Note 13).

¢ Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus. The government-wide financial statements are repotted using the
acctual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the
time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange
transactions, in which the Authority gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving)
equal value in exchange, include gross receipts taxes, grants and approptiations. On an accrual
basis, revenue from gross receipts taxes is recognized when the underlying transaction has occurred.
Revenue from grants and appropriations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied.

Amounts reported as program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
setvices or privileges provided; 2) operating grants and contributions; and 3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Governmental fund types follow the modified accrual basis of accounting for financial statement
purposes. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues and other governmental fund
financial resource increments are recognized in the accounting petiod in which they become
susceptible to accrual - that is, when they become both measurable and available to finance
expenditures of the fiscal period (available meaning collectible within the current petiod or soon
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Notes to Financial Statements - continued

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

¢ Measurtement Focus and Basis of Accounting - continued
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the cutrent period). For this putpose, the Authotity
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal

period.

Revenues from grants that are restricted for specific uses are recognized as revenues and as
receivables when the related costs are incurred. Interest earned is accrued currently by the
appropriate funds. Contributions, gross receipts tax and other monies held by other state and local
agencies are recorded as a receivable at the time the money is made available to the specific fund.
All other revenues are recognized when they are received and are not susceptible to accrual.

Expenditures, other than vacation, compensatory, and sick pay, are recorded when they are incutred.
Expenditures charged to federal programs are recorded utilizing the cost principles prescribed ot
permitted by the various funding sources. Interest expense is recognized when paid. Total interest
expense incurred during the year ended June 30, 2008 was $46,538,759.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from ron-operating items.. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a proprietary fund’s
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Authority’s enterptise funds are
charges to customers for interest and fees. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost
of services and administrative expenses. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available for expenses, unrestricted funds are

applied first.

e Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on deposit with the New Mexico State Treasurer. The

cash on deposit with the State Treasurer is invested in a money market fund registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission rated AAAm by Standard & Poort’s.

In general, state statutes require that all deposits held by the State Treasurer be collateralized at a
minimum level of 50%. Separate financial statements of the State Treasurer indicate collateral,
categories of risk and market value of purchased investments which may differ from the cash
deposited by the Authority.

e Loans :
Loans are stated at their principal amount. Interest on loans 1s accrued based on the daily principal
balance outstanding, except when a loan has been past due for 90 days. All significant loans are to
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Notes to Financial Statements - continued

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

¢ Loans - continued

governmental entities secured by tax revenue or are loaned to other entities, which are repaying the
loans in accotdance with their loan agreements. There are no material loans past due for mote than
90 days at the end of the fiscal year, which would be required to be placed on non-accrual status.

¢ Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is maintained to cover possible losses inherent in the loan portfolio
based on management’s evaluation of the loan portfolio, giving consideration to vatious factors,
including collateral value, past loan loss experience, current facts and economic conditions. The
allowance is based on management’s estimates, and ultimate losses may vary from the current
estimates. These estimates ate reviewed periodically and any necessary adjustments are reported in
income in the period they become known. At June 30, 2008, it was management’s opinion that all
governmental fund teceivables, as well as outstanding receivables from the Drinking Water State
Revolving Fund, Primary Care Capital Fund and Behavioral Health Capital Fund, were fully
collectible and, therefore, no allowance was provided for at June 30, 2008. The Authority has not
experienced any losses on its loan portfolio.

e Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of the Authority’s bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment,
are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable bond
covenants or legislation. The cash and cash equivalents held for others by trustees have the
following restricted assets. The “debt service and bond reserve” accounts are used to report
resources held by trustee and set aside for future debt service payments. The “program-grant
proceeds” account is used to report those proceeds of bond issuances that were issued to finance a
grant to another state agency. The “program-bond proceeds” account is used to repott those
proceeds of bond issues that wete loaned to other governmental entities, which the botrowers have
not yet expended. The “expense fund” account is used to cover professional expenses incurred
during the bond offering process. '

¢ Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The Authority prepares a budget for the operations fund and for the DWRLF. These budgets are
approved by the Authority’s board but are not legally binding, and therefote are not presented in the
financial statements. These budgets may also be amended by the Authority’s board. The budgets
are prepared on a non-GAAP basis. The differences between the budgetary basis and GAAP basis
are that capital outlay expenditures are included as a budgetary expenditure and depreciation
expense is not a budgetary expenditure.
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Notes to Financial Statements - continued

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

e Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost and depreciated over their estimated useful lives (with
no salvage value). Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of
donation. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays exceeding $5,000 that significantly
extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Computer software is included in furniture and
equipment. In addition, furniture and equipment with lives of three years or less, and repairs and
maintenance that do not extend the useful lives of premises and equipment are expensed as
incurred. The Authority does not have any internally developed software.

Estimated useful life is management’s estitnate of how long the asset is expected to meet service
demands. Straight-line depreciation is used based on estimated useful lives ranging from three to

seven years.

e Income Taxes

The Authority is a tax-exempt, quasi-governmental organization under Section 115 of the Internal
Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been included in the accompanying
financial statements. The Authority is subject to other Internal Revenue Code sections relating to
the tax-exempt status of the bonds issued by the Authority. '

e Compensated Absences

Full-time employees are entitled to fifteen days vacation leave with ten years or less employment with
the Authority. Employees with more than ten years receive twenty days. When employees terminate,
they are compensated at their current houtly rate for accuamulated unpaid vacation leave as of the date of

termination.

Full-time employees are entitled to twelve days of sick leave each fiscal year. When employees terminate,
they are compensated at twenty-five (25%) of their current houtly rate of accumulated unpaid sick leave
up to 300 hours. Part-time employees accrue vacation leave and sick leave on a prorated basis based on
the number of hours they wotk. Accrued compensated absences are recorded and liquidated in the
operating fund.

e Cash Flows '

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the various funds consider all highly liquid assets
(excluding restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash
equivalents.

e Bond Discounts, Premiums and Issuance Costs

In governmental fund types, bond discounts, premiums and issuance costs are recognized in the
g pes, » P . &

period incurred. For proprietary fund types, bond préemiums and discounts, as well as issuance
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Notes to Financial Statements - continued

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

¢ Bond Discounts, Premiums and Issuance Costs - continued
costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight line method. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Issuance costs are reported as

deferred costs.

¢ Fund Equity

Reserves represent those portions of fund equity appropriated or legally segregated for a specific
future use. Debt service fund balances are reserved based on the language in the trust agreements,
which require the bond proceeds be used for the specific purposes of the fund. Special revenue
funds are reserved based on the statutory or bond trust restrictions.

¢ Net Assets
The government-wide and business type fund financial statements utilize a net asset presentation.

Net assets are categorized as investment in capital assets (net-of related debt), restricted and
unrestricted.

Investment in capital assets (net of related debt) is intended to reflect the portion of net
assets which are associated with non-liquid, capital assets less outstanding capital asset
related debt. The net of related debt is the debt less the outstanding liquid assets and any
associated unamortized cost. The Authority has no capital asset related debt.

Restricted assets are liquid assets that have third-party (statutory, bond covenant or
granting agency) limitations on their use. When there is an option, the Authority spends
restricted resources first.

Unrestricted assets represent liquid assets.

e Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and habilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

e Interfund and Interagency Transactions

Interfund and interagency transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbutsements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made
from it that are propetly applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the
reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.
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Notes to Financial Statements - continued

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

e Interfund and Interagency Transactions - continued

All other interfund transactions, except reimbursements and administrative fee transactions, are
teported as transfets. Non-recurring or non-routine permanent transfers of equity are reported as
residual equity transfers. All other transfers are recorded as operating transfers in (out) to other

state agency under the other financing sources (uses) category.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND FUNDS HELD FOR OTHERS BY TRUSTEE

Funds held for others and shott-term investments are held at the trustee in the names of the applicable
government entity and the Authority. The following is a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to

the financial statements.

Government-wide statement of net assets:
State Treasurer Local-Government Investment Pool
The Primary Care Capital Fund held at the
State Treasurer’s Office )
State Treasurer’s Office cash held at Bank of
Albuquerque in money matket accounts
Bank of Albuquerque trust accounts
Reserve on Bond Payable held in Bank of America
Wells Fargo operating accounts (collateralized at 50%)
Cash held at the Reserve

Agency Fund:
Money market accounts invested in
Bank of Albuquerque

Book Bank
Balance Balance
147,117,448 147,117,448
545,566 545,566
21,600,027 21,600,027
246,849,598 246,849 598
279,359 279,359
1,100,832 1,141,690
82,453,794 82.453.795
499,946,624 499,987,483
380.172.840 380,172,840
880,119,464 880,160,323
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND FUNDS HELD FOR OTHERS BY TRUSTEE -
continued

The Authority’s State Treasurer funds are contained in the New Mexico GROW LGIP, a Securities and
Exchange Commission registered money market fund rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s, and at
June 30, 2008 are valued at $147,117,448, with a 46-day WAM.

Funds held for others by trustees represent funds held by financial institutions as trustees and paying
agents for the Authority for its various bond issues. The sources of funds are financing program bond
proceeds, pledged revenues and other debt service requirements. These funds are invested in short-
term money market accounts that invest in U.S. Treasuty obligations and repurchase agreements
collateralized by U.S. Treasury obligations in accordance with state law. The trustees are also
permitted to purchase U.S. Treasury obligations.

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of failure of the countetpatty,
the Authority will not be able to recover the value of its collateral secutities that are in the possession of
an outside party. All are fully collateralized and the collateral is held in the Authority’s name.

Credit Risk. The Authority’s investments shall be in accordance with State Law, 6-10-10 and 6-10-
10.1 NMSA 1978, including but not limited to the followmg Treasury Bills, Notes, Bonds, Strips and
U.S. Government.

Concentration of Credit Risk. Concentration of credit risk is defined as investments of more than
5% 1n any one issuer.

Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that interest rate fluctuations may adversely affect an
mvestment’s fair value. The prices of securities fluctuate with market interest rates and the value of
securities held in a collateral portfolio will decline if market interest rates rise. In this event, the
financial institution is required to provide additional collateral necessary to comply with New Mexico
State Statute. Therefore, funds are not susceptible to interest rate risk as they are all fully
collateralized.
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LOANS RECEIVABLE - BUSINESS TYPE AND GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Loan receivable balances consist of the following at June 30, 2008:

Enterprise funds:
Public Projects Revolving Loan Fund,
net of allowance of $1,067,970 $ 1,001,731,515
Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund 30,907,764
Primary Care Capital Fund 7,176,671
Behavioral Health Capital Fund 369.692

1,040,185,642

Governmental funds:
Smart Money Loans 1,825,254
C.OPS. : 411,000
Water Trust Board Loan/Grants _ 316,651

2,552,905

$ 1042 47

¢ Public Projects Revolving Loan Fund
The Public Projects Revolving Loan Fund loans receivable balance at June 30, 2008 is $1,001,731,515,
net of an allowance for loan loss of $1,067,970, and consists of loans made to various entities.

Terms for the Public Projects Revolving Loans vary with interest rates ranging from 3% to 6%. The
following is a summary of future loan principal and interest to be collected based on the loan
repayment schedules after year-end:

Principal Interest Total
July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2009 $ 63,106,681 37,947,082 101,053,763
July 1, 2009 to maturity 939,692,804 376,210,888 1,315,903,692
$ 1,002,799,485 414,157,970 1,416,957,455
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LOANS RECEIVABLE - BUSINESS TYPE AND GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES -
continued

e Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund
Tetms for the Drinking Water State Revolving loans vaty with intetest rates ranging from 0% to 3%.
The following is a summary of future Joan principal and interest to be collected based on the loan

repayment schedules after year-end:

Principal Interest Total
July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2009 $ 1,198,908 562,504 1,761,412
July 1, 2009 to maturity 29,708,856 5,922,559 35,631,415
$ 30,907,764 6,485,063 37,392,827

No allowance for uncollectible loans has been established as the loans ate secured by applicable
sources of pledged receivables.

e Ptimary Care Capital Fund
Terms for each loan vary with interest rates at 3%. The following is a summary of future loan
principal and interest to be collected on the loan repayment schedules at year end.

Principal Interest Total
July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2009 $ 915,959 206,455 1,122,414
July 1, 2009 to maturity 6,260,712 1,211,732 7,472,444
$ 7,176,671 1,418,187 8,594,858

No allowance for uncollectible loans has been established as the loans ate secured by applicable
sources of pledged receivables.
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LOANS RECEIVABLE - BUSINESS TYPE AND GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES -
continued

¢ Behavioral Health Capital Fund
The Behavioral Health Capital loan has an interest rate of 3%. The following is 2 summary of future
loan principal and interest to be collected on the loan repayment schedules at year-end.

Principal Interest Total
July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2009 $ 32,237 10,167 42,404
July 1, 2009 to maturity 337,455 48,231 385,686
$ 369,692 58,398 428,090

No allowance for uncollectible loans has been established as the loan is secured by applicable sources
of pledged receivables.

e “SMART” Money Loans

The “SMART” Money Loan Participation Program brings the Authority and “SMART Partner Banks”
together as partners to share risk while lowering the overall cost of botrowing for the business by the
Authority offering below-matket rates on its portion of the loan to a New Mexico business. The
Authority participates in 49% of the total loan amount. Interest rates range from 5% to 8%.

The following is 2 summary of future loan principal and interest to be collected on the loan repayment
schedules at year end.

Principal Interest Total
July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2009 $ - - -
July 1, 2009 to maturity 1,825,254 - 1,825 254
$ 1,825,254 - 1,825,254

No allowance for uncollectible loans has been established at this time. The loans are secured by
commercial real estate mortgages.
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LOANS RECEIVABLE - BUSINESS TYPE AND GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES -
continued :

e C.O.PS.

The C.O.P.S. loans vary, with interest rates ranging from 4.75% to 6.618%. The following is a
summary of future loan principal and interest to be collected on the loan repayment schedules at year-
end. :

Principal Interest Total
July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2009 $ 62,000 24,358 86,358
July 1, 2009 to maturity 349,000 68,501 417,501
$ 411,000 92,859 503,859

No allowance for uncollectible loans has been established as the loan is secured by applicable sources
of pledged receivables.

e Water Trust Board Loan/Grants
The Water Trust Board established a loan element whereby grantees ate required to repay 10% of the

. total amount they receive. Interest rates vary, based on the borrowet’s ability to repay, but range from
4% to 5%.

The following is a summary of future loan principal and interest to be collected on the loan repayment
schedules at year-end.

Principal Interest Total

July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2009 $ 16,201 - 16,201
July 1, 2009 to maturity 300,450 - 300,450
$ 316,651 - 316,651

Allowance has not yet been established as these loans were established late in fiscal year 2008 and
tepayments have not been made. An appropriate allowance will be made in fiscal year 2009.
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DUE FROM AND DUE TO OTHER FUNDS AND TRANSFERS

These amounts represent interfund receivables and payables arising from interfund transactions within
the Authority. These balances are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide

columnar presentation.

Interfund receivables and payables as of June 30, 2008 consist of the following:

Due to:
Enterprise Funds
Public Project
Revolving Funds
200's
Due From:
Governmental Funds:
Metro Court 304 . $ -
Water and Wastewater Grant 307 6,707
Water Project Fund 309 28,106
Emergency Drought Relief 312 -
Water Planning Grant 313 9,118
Economic Development - 314 1,013,246
LGTF - GRIP I 323 52,961
Total Governmental Funds 1,110,138
Enteprise Funds:
GRIP Fund 104 82,247
Drinking Water 500 52,734
Child Care 319 82,784
Behavioral Health 311 3,648
Local Road Fund 504 1,839
Primary Care - 501 118,307
NM Tax Credit 600 412,952
Energy Efficiency 601 14,432
PPRF 200s 273,793
Total Enterprise Funds 1,042,736
) 2,152,874
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DUE FROM AND DUE TO OTHER FUNDS AND TRANSFERS - continued

Transfers between funds for the year ended June 30, 2008 are as follows:

Transfers In:
Governmental Funds:
UNM Cig Tax
UNM Health Sciences
Metro Court
State Building GRT

Enterprise Funds:
Operating Fund
GRIP Admin.
PPRF
Behavioral Health

Cigarette Tax Rev. Bond

Drinking Water
Local Road Fund

UNM UNM Metro State
Cig Tax Health Sci. Court Bldg. GRT Operating
7,144,348 6,525,565 3,055,780 8,591,026
255,882 - - -
7,400,230 6,525,565 3,055,780 8,591,026

Transfers in and out of the governmental funds are legislatively appropriated revenues to pay debt service.

Enterptise fund transfers in and out are primarily movement of loan proceeds out to the borrowers to pay for program

and construction costs.

$6,925,294 was transferred from the enterprise funds to the governmental funds for fiscal year 2008.

The following Enterprise Fund owed the following amount to other state agencies at June 30, 2008:

The Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund owed $1,075,831 to the Environment Department for technical set-asides.
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Transfers OQut

Net

GRIP Drinking Local Transfers

Admin. PPRF Cig Tax Water Road Total In (Out)
- - - - (7,400,230)
4,884,677 - 4,884,677 (1,640,888)
- 2,357,229 - 2,357,229 2,357,229
- 2,814.375 - 2,814,375 (241,405)
- 10,056,281 - 10,056,281 (6,925,294)
- 6,500,000 - 6,500,000 (2,091,026)
- 13,520 - 13,520 (861,480)
- - - 25,316,719 6,657,838
- - 38,215 38,215 38,215
- - - 255,882 217,667
- 2,089,080 - 2,089,080 2,089,080
875,000 - - 875,000 875,000
875,000 18,658,881 38,215 45,144,697 -
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Notes to Financial Statements - continued

Governmental Funds Operating Transfers from (to) Other State Agencies

UNM
Agency Economic Health Other
Fund Development Sciences Governmental :
State Agency Number Fund Fund Funds Total

Dept. of Finance & Administration 34100 $ 7,100,000 9,505,445 107,053,593 123,659,038
University of New Mexico 95100 - (3,647,633) - (3,647,633)
New Mexico Department of

Workforce Solutions 63100 - - (557,079) (557,079)
New Mexico State University 95200 - - (2,819,856) (2,819,856)

$ 7,100,000 5,857,812 103,676,658 116,634,470

Enterprise Funds Operating Transfers from (to) Other State Agencies

Public New Mexico
Agency Project Drinking Water
Fund Revolving Revolving
State Agency Number Funds Loan Fund
Bernalillo Metropolitan Court 24400 § (950,000) -
University of New Mexico 95100 (24,177,732) (4,984,752)
NM Department of Health 66500 (287,297) -
NM Environment Department 66700 (576,534) -
$ (25,991,563) (4,984.752)

The Authority received $123,659,038 in New Mexico state
Administration.

general fund appropriations from the Department of Finance and
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5. OPERATING TRANSFERS - continued

The following enterprise funds made the following transfers to other state agencies during the year
ended June 30, 2008:

The PPRF Series 2005 C & D Metro Court Refunding transferred $950,000 in rebates to Metro
Coutt.

The Drinking Water Revolving Fund transferred $4,984,752 to the New Mexico Environment
Department (NMED) for billings, and the PPRF Direct Cash Loans transferred $576,534 to the
NMED for debt service for PPRF administration.

The PPRF Series 2005 E Fund transferred $24,177,732 to the Univetsity of New Mexico (UNM)
for reimbursement of construction costs related to the UNM Cancer Center.

The PPRF Direct Cash Loans transferred $287,297 to Gila Regional Medical Center for payment
of debt service.

The following debt service funds made the following transfers to other state agencies during the year
ended June 30, 2008:

The UNM Health Sciences 2004A transferred $3,647,633 for revenue rebate to UNM from
cigarette tax collections.

The Workers’ Compensation Series 1996 transferred $557,079 for revenue rebate to Workers’
Compensation.

The State Building GRT Purchase Fund transferred $2,819,856 in program fund requests to
project draw requests and debt service payments.
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CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of changes in capital assets follows:

Balance Adjustments/ Balance
Business-type Activities June 30, 2007 Additions Deletions June 30, 2008
Depreciable assets: ’ ‘
Furniture and fixtures
at historical cost $ 98,166 - - 98,166
Computer hardware and
software 388,702 20,739 - 409,441
Machinery and equipment 24,768 - - 24,768
Leasehold improvements 26932 8,240 - 35172
538,568 28,979 - 567,547
Accumulated depreciation:
Furniture and fixtures (144,059) (9,789) - (153,848)
Computer hardware and :
software (87,843) (40,829) - (128,672)
Machinery and equipment (8,512) (2,470) - (10,982)
Leasehold improvements (5.886) (3,507) - (9,393)
(246,300) (56.595) - - _ 302,895
Net total $ 292,268 (27,616) - 264,652

Depreciation expense was $15,060 in the Operating Fund, $18,587 in the Public Project Revolving
Fund, $9,197 in the Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund, $12,470 in the GRIP Administrative Fund,
$160 in the Primary Care Fund, $320 in the Behavioral Health Capital Fund, $160 in the Child Care
Revolving Loan Fund, $160 in the Local Road Fund, $320 in the Tax Credits Fund and $160 in the
Energy Efficiency Fund for the year ended June 30, 2008. '
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6. CAPITAL ASSETS - continued

Balance Adjustments/ Balance
Governmental Activities June 30, 2007 Additions Deletions June 30, 2008
Depteciable assets:
Furniture and fixtures _
at historical cost $ 100,636 - - 100,636
Computer hardware and
software 119,374 4,722 - 124,096
Machinery and equipment 24,349 - - - 24,349
Leasehold improvements 13,318 - - 13,318
257,677 4,722 - 262,399
Accumulated depreciation:
Furniture and fixtures (59,121) (14,149) V - (73,270)
Computer hardware and
software (37,854) (17,448) - (55,302)
Machinery and equipment (10,578) (3,423) - (14,001)
Leasehold improvements (4.621) (1,872) - (6,493)
Accumulated depteciation (112174) (36.892) - (149.066)
Net total $ 145503 (32,170 ' - 113,333
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Notes to Financial Statements - continued

7. BONDS PAYABLE

Bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2008, for the Authority’s entetptise funds consist of the following:

® Public Project Revolving Funds (PPRF)

PPREF Seties 1999A, 1999B. 1999C and 1999D. On January 1, 1999, the Authority issued
its Public Project Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A and 1999B (tax exempt)
and Series 1999 and 1999D (taxable), in the aggtregate principal amounts of $13,135,000,
$3,025,000, $2,265,000 and $4,875,000, respectively. The Series 1999 Bonds were issued by
the Authority to reimburse the Public Project Revolving Fund for loans made to the 1999
Government Units’ accounts and to reimburse the Authority and finance the costs of
issuance of the Seties 1999 bonds and to purchase bonds from the Department of Energy,
Minerals and Natural Resources and the New Mexico Interstate Stream Commission’s
investment securities. All of the bonds are secured from the Authority’s portion of
governmental gross receipts tax and income and principal from the loans and investments
financed by the proceeds of the issue. '

PPRF Series 2000A. On January 1, 2000, the Authority issued its Public Project Revolving
Fund, Series 2000A Bonds, in the aggregate principal amount of $4,715,000 to finance a
loan to Valencia County, New Mexico, to construct, purchase, furnish and equip an adult
correctional facility for the County and to finance the cost of issuance of the Series 2000A
Bonds.

PPRF Seties 2000B and C. On September 1, 2000, the Authority issued $7,670,000 of
Public Project Revolving Fund, Series 2000B and $28,850,000 Series 2000C Bonds. The
Series 2000B and C bonds were issued to reimburse the Public Project Revolving Fund for
loans made by the Authority to various Governmental Units and to reimburse the
Authority for and to finance the costs of issuance of the Series 2000B and C Bonds.

PPRF Series 2002A. On July 2, 2002, the Authority issued $55,610,000 of Public Project
Revolving Fund, Series 2002A Bonds. The Series 2002A Bonds were issued to teimburse
the Public Project Revolving Fund for loans made by the Authority to various
governmental units and to reimburse the Authority for and to finance the costs of issuance
of the Series 2002A Bonds.

PPRF Series 2003A. On April 3, 2003, the Authority issued $39,945,000 of Public Project
Revolving Fund, Series 2003A Bonds. The Series 2003A Bonds were issued to reimburse
the Public Project Revolving Fund for loans made by the Authority to various
governmental units and to reimburse the Authority for and to finance the costs of issuance
of the Seties 2003A Bonds.
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7. BONDS PAYABLE - continued

¢ Public Project Revolving Funds (PPRF) - continued

PPRE Seties 2003B. On June 5, 2003, the Authotity issued $25,370,000 of Public Project
Revolving Fund, Series 2003B Bonds. The Series 2003B Bonds were issued to: 1) refund
the Authotity’s outstanding Public Project Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds, Seties 1995A,
maturing on and after June 1, 2006, and Public Project Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds,
Seties 1996A, maturing on and after June 1, 2007; and 2) finance the costs of issuance of
the Seties 2003B Bonds and the refunding of the Series 1995A and 1996A Bonds.

PPRF Seties 2004A. On January 28, 2004, the Authority issued $43,400,000 of Public
Project Revolving Fund, Series 2004A Bonds. The Series 2004A Bonds were issued to:

1) reimbutse the Public Project Revolving Fund fot loans made by the Authority to cettain
governmental entities for the purpose of financing public projects; and 2) finance the costs
of issuance of the Series 2004A Bonds.

PPRF Seties 2004B. On June 9, 2004, the Authority issued $49,540,000 of Public Project
Revolving Fund, Series 2004B.Revenue Bonds. The Series 2004B Bonds were issued to:

1) reimburse the Public Project Revolving Fund for loans made by the Authority to cettain
governmental entities for the purpose of financing public projects; and 2) finance the costs
of issuance of the Series 2004B Bonds.

PPRF Series 2004C. On October 1, 2004, the Authority issued $168,890,000 of Public
Project Revolving Fund Series 2004C Revenue Bonds. The Series 2004C Bonds were
issued to: 1) reimburse the Public Project Revolving Fund for loans made by the Authority
to certain governmental entities for the purpose of financing public projects, 2) fund the
loan to the Albuquerque Bernalillo County Water Utility Authorlty, and 3) finance the
costs of issuance of the Series 2004C Bonds.

PPREF Series 2005A and B. On August 1, 2005, the Authority issued $19,015,000 of Public
Project Revolving Fund Series 2005A Revenue Bonds and $13,500,000 of Public Project
Revolving Fund Series 2005B Refunding Revenue Bonds. The Series 2005A and B Bonds
were issued to: 1) advance refund certain outstanding Public Project Revolving Fund
Bonds, 2) reimburse the Public Project Revolving Fund for loans made by the Authority to
governmental entities for the purpose of funding public projects, and 3) finance the costs
of issuance of the Series 2005A and B Bonds.
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7. BONDS PAYABLE - continued

¢ Public Project Revolving Funds (PPRF) - continued

PPRF Series 2005C and D. On April 5, 2005, the Authority issued $50,395,000 of
Subordinate Lien Public Project Series 2005C and $8,660,000 of Taxable Subordinate Lien
Public Project Series 2005D Revolving Fund Refunding Revenue Bonds. The Series
2005C and D Bonds were issued to: 1) purchase the Authority’s Court Facilities Fee
Refunding Revenue Bonds, and 2) finance the costs of issuance of the Series 2005C and D
Bonds.

PPRF Series 2005E. On August 30, 2005, the Authority issued $23,630,000 of Subotdinate
Lien Public Project Revolving Fund Series 2005E Revenue Bonds. The Series 2005E
Bonds were issued to: 1) purchase the Authority’s Subordinate Lien Cigarette Tax Revenue
Bonds (UNM Health Sciences Center Project), Series 2005, and 2) finance the costs of
issuance of the Seties 2005E Bonds. ' :

PPRF Series 2005F. On December 7, 2005, the Authority issued $21,950,000 of
Subordinate Lien Public Project Revolving Fund Series 2005 F Revenue Bonds.

The 2005 F Series Bonds were issued to: 1) directly fund, ot to reimburse the Public
Projects Revolving Fund for, loans made by the NMFA to certain governmental entities
for the purpose of financing public projects, 2) purchase a Reserve Instrument, and 3) pay
the cost of issuance of the Series 2005 F Bonds.

PPRF Series 2006A. On March 28, 2006, the Authority issued $49,545,000 of Subordinate
Lien Public Project Revolving Fund Series 2006 A Revenue Bonds. The 2006 A Series
Bonds were issued to: 1) originate loans or reimburse the NMFA for moneys used to
originate loans to, or purchase securities from, certain governmental entities that will be or
were used to finance certain projects for such governmental units, 2) purchase a reserve
surety bond for deposit to the debt setvice reserve account established for the Series 2006
A Bonds, and 3) pay costs incutred in connection with the issuance of the Series 2006 A
Bonds.

PPRF Series 2006B. On June 27, 2006, the Authority issued $38,260,000 of Senior Lien
Public Project Revolving Fund Series 2006 B Revenue Bonds. The 2006 B Series Bonds
were 1ssued to: 1) reimburse the Public Project Revolving Fund for ot to originate loans
made or to be made by the NMFA to certain governmental entities for the purpose of
funding public projects for such governmental units and, 2) pay costs incurred in
connection with the issuance of the Series 2006 B Bonds.
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7. BONDS PAYABLE - continued

® Public Project Revolving Funds (PPRF) - continued

PPRF Series 2006C. On November 7, 2006, the Authority issued $39,860,000 of
Subordinate Lien Public Project Revolving Fund Seties 2006 C Revenue Bonds. The 2006
C Series Bonds wete issued to: 1) reimburse the Public Project Revolving Fund for loans
made by NMFA to cettain governmental entities for the putpose of funding public
projects for such governmental units, including a $21,650,229 loan to the Jicarilla Apache
Ttibal Utility Authority; 2) purchase a debt service reserve fund surety bond for deposit to
the Debt Service Reserve Account established for the Series 2006 C Bonds; and 3) pay
costs incurred with the issuance of the Seties 2006 C Bonds.

PPRF Series 2006D. On September 6, 2006, the Authority issued $54,600,000 of Senior
Lien Public Project Revolving Fund Series 2006 D Revenue Bonds. The 2006 D Series
Bonds were issued to: 1) reimburse the Public Project Revolving Fund for loans made by
the NMFA to certain governmental entities for the putpose of funding public projects for
such governmental units, 2) purchase contempotaneously with the issuance of the Seties
2006 D Bonds the NMFA State Building Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 A (PERA
Building Acquisition) (the “2006A Bonds™) to finance the acquisition and improvement of
a public building for use by the State with proceeds of the 2006 A Bonds, 3) putchase
contemporaneously with the issuance of the Series 2006 D Bonds the NMFA State
Building Tax Revenue bonds Series 2006 B (Refunding Project) (the “2006 B Bonds™) to
refund the outstanding NMFA State Office Building Bonds Seties 2002 A with proceeds of
the Seties 2006 B Bonds, and 4) pay costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the
Sertes 2006 D Bonds.

PPRF Series 2007A. On February 27, 2007, the Authotity issued $34,010,000 of
Subotdinate Lien Public Project Revolving Fund Series 2007 A Revenue Bonds. The 2007
A Series Bonds were issued to: 1) reimburse the Public Project Revolving Fund for loans
made by NMFA to cettain governmental entities for the putpose of funding public
projects for such governmental units; 2) purchase a debt service reserve fund surety bond
for deposit to the Debt Service Reserve Account established for the Series 2007 A Bonds;
3) pay accrued interest; and 4) pay costs incurred with the issuance of the Series 2007 A
Bonds.
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7. BONDS PAYABLE - continued

® Public Project Revolving Funds (PPRF) - continued

PPREF Series 2007B. On July 19, 2007, the Authority issued $38,475,000 of Subordinate Lien
Public Project Revolving Fund Series 2007 B Revenue Bonds. The 2007 B Series Bonds
wete issued to: 1) reimburse the Public Projects Revolving Fund for loans made by the
NMFA to certain governmental entities for the purpose of funding public projects for such
governmental units; (2) retire a botrowing of the NMFA incurred in anticipation of the
issuance of the Series 2007B Bonds; (3) purchase a debt setvice reserve fund surety bond for
deposit into the Debt Service Reserve Account established for the Seties 2007B Bonds; and
(4) pay costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the Series 2007B Bonds.

PPRE Series 2007C. On September 26, 2007, the Authority issued $131,860,000 of
Subotdinate Lien Public Project Revolving Fund Series 2007 C Revenue Bonds. The 2007 C
Seties Bonds were issued to: 1) reimburse the Public Projects Revolving Fund for loans made
by the NMFA to certain governmental entities for the purpose of funding public projects for
such governmental units; (2) retite a borrowing of the NMFA incurred in anticipation of the
issuance of the Series 2007C Bonds; (3) purchase a debt service reserve fund surety bond for
deposit into the Debt Service Reserve Account established for the Seties 2007C Bonds; and
(4) pay costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the Seties 2007C Bonds.

PPRF Series 2007E. On November 8, 2007, the Authority issued $61,945,000 of Senior Lien
Public Project Revolving Fund Series 2007 E Revenue Bonds. The 2007 E Series Bonds
were issued to: 1) reimburse the Public Projects Revolving Fund for loans made by the
NMFA to certain governmental entities for the purpose of funding public projects for such
governmental units; (2) retite a borrowing of the NMFA incurred in anticipation of the
issuance of the Series 2007E Bonds; and (3) pay costs incurred in connection with the
issuance of the Series 2007E Bonds.

PPRF Series 2008A. On April 17, 2008, the Authority issued $158,965,000 of Senior Lien
Public Project Revolving Fund Seties 2008 A Revenue Bonds. The 2008A Series Bonds
were issued to: 1) reimburse the Public Projects Revolving Fund for loans made by the
NMFA to certain governmental entities for the purpose of funding public projects for such
governmental units; (2) retire a borrowing of the NMFA incurred in anticipation of the
issuance of the Series 2008A Bonds; and (3) pay costs incurred in connection with the
issuance of the Series 2008A Bonds.
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7. BONDS PAYABLE - continued

Bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2008, to be paid out of the Authotity’s debt setvice funds consist of
the following:

UNM Health Sciences Fund. Cigarette Tax Series 2004A Revenue Bonds. On Apsil 1, 2004, the
Authority issued $39,035,000 of Cigarette Tax Series 2004A Revenue Bonds (UNM Health Services
Center Project). The Series 2004A Bonds were issued to 1) finance a pottion of the costs of the -
design, construction, equipping and furnishing of additions and improvements to the University of
New Mexico Hospital and the Cancer Research and Treattnent Center, both at the University of
New Mexico Health Sciences Center in Albuquerque, New Mexico; and 2) finance the costs of
issuance of the Seties 2004A bonds.

UNM Health Sciences 2004B. On September 22, 2004, the Authority issued $10,000,000 of
Cigarette Tax Revenue Series 2004B Revenue Bonds. The Seties 2004B Bonds were issued to 1)
finance a portion of the costs of the design, construction, equipping and furnishing of additions
and improvements to the University of New Mexico Hospital and the Cancer Research and
Treatment Center, both at the University of New Mexico Health Sciences Center in Albuquerque,
New Mexico; and 2) finance the costs of issuance of the Seties 2004B Bonds.

Workers’ Compensation Financing Fund. In July 1996, the Authority sold $4,310,000 of New
Mexico Finance Authority Workers’ Compensation Administration Building Revenue Bonds,
Series 1996. The proceeds are for the acquisition of land and construction of an office building
for the Workers’ Compensation Administration. The bonds ate solely payable from the revenues
derived from the first §.40 of the quartetly workets’ compensation assessment paid to the
Authority.

Metro Court Financing Fund. The Laws of 1998, Chapter 6, authotized the Authotity to issue
revenue bonds for the construction of a new Bernalillo County Metropolitan Court facility. On
August 1, 2001, the Authority issued $21,600,000 of New Mexico Finance Authotity Court
Facilities Fee Revenue Bonds, Seties 2001A (Tax Exempt), and $11,400,000 of New Mexico
Finance Authority Court Facilities Fee Revenue Bonds, Seties 2001B (Taxable). The Series 2001A
Bonds were issued by the Authority for the purpose of financing the acquisition of real property
for the design, construction, furnishing and equipping of a new coutt building for the Bernalillo
County Metropolitan Court and to finance the costs of issuance of the Series 2001 A Bonds. The
taxable Series 2001B Bonds were issued by the Authority for the purpose of financing the
acquisition of land for, and the design, construction, furnishing and equipping of a patking facility
adjacent to the new Bernalillo County Metropolitan Court and to finance the costs of issuance of
the taxable Series 2001B. Bonds.
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7. BONDS PAYABLE - continued

Metro Court Financing Fund - continued.
On September 1, 2002, the Authority issued $24,900,000 of New Mexico Finance Authority Court

Facilities Fee Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 (Tax Exempt). The Series 2002 Bonds were issued by
the Authority for the purpose of financing the acquisition of real property for the design,
construction, furnishing and equipping of a new coutt building for the Bernalillo County
Metropolitan Court and to finance the costs of issuance of the Series 2002 Bonds. The Series
2002 Bonds were issued pursuant to the bond resolution with a lien on the Pledged Court
Facilities revenues on parity, with the liens thereon of the $21,600,000 Authority Court Facilities
Fee Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A, and the $11,400,000 Authority Taxable Court Facilities Fee
Revenue Bonds, Series 2001B.

State Capitol Improvement Financing Fund. On May 11, 1999, the Authority issued $9,315,000 of
New Mexico Finance Authority State Capitol Building Improvement Revenue Bonds, Taxable

Seties 1999. The bonds were issued for the purpose of repairing, remodeling, constructing and
equipping the New Mexico State Library and for relocation assoctated renovations in the State
Capitol.

Equipment Loan Fund. The Authority has issued Certificates of Participation under the
Equipment Loan Program. The proceeds are loaned to various governmental entities to purchase
equipment. The loans have been assigned to trustees. The cettificates ate secured by various
sources of local government revenues secured by intercept agreements that direct sources of
revenues from the borrowers to the trustees. The certificates are not an obligation of the State of
New Mexico or the Authority.

In October 1994, the Authority 1ssued $646,000 aggregate principal amount of its Pooled
Equipment Certificates of Participation, Series 1994A, the net proceeds of which were used to
make loans to ten local governments in the State. On August 29, 1995, the Authority issued
$4,288,000 aggregate principal amount of its Pooled Equipment Program Certificates of
Participation, Series 1995A. The proceeds wete loaned to 18 governmental entities in the state.
On August 29,1995, the Authority issued $2,904,000 aggregate principal amount of its Pooled
Equipment Program Certificates of Participation, Series 1995B. The net proceeds were loaned to
the City of Las Cruces. On March 19, 1996, the Authority issued $1,458,000 aggregate principal
amount of its Pooled Equipment Program Certificates of Participation, Series 1996A. The net
proceeds wetre loaned to 13 local governmental entities in the state. On December 3, 1996, the
Authority issued $1,820,000 aggregate principal amount of its Pooled Equipment Program
Certificates of Participation, Series 1995B. The net proceeds were loaned to various governmental
entities in the state. Interest rates on the equipment loans range from 4.5% to 6.3%.
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1. BONDS PAYABLE - continued

State Office Building Financing Fund. The Laws of 2001, Chapters 166 and 199, authorized the
Authority to issued revenue bonds for the General Services Department (GSD) of the State of New
Mexico. The State Office Building Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2002A, were issued on December 15,
2001, for purpose of financing the costs of acquiting, constructing, equipping and otherwise
improving land and buildings for the GSD. The Series 2002A Bonds are payable from and .
secured only by amounts on deposit in the Authority’s State Office Building Fund, which consists
of money appropriated and transferred to the Fund from the net receipts attributable to the gross
teceipts tax of the State in the amount of $500,000 per month.

Bonds outstanding ate direct obligations of the Authority for which its full faith and credit are pledged
and are payable from pledged tax revenues of various entities.
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7. BONDS PAYABLE - continued
Bonds payable and related premium/discount balances consist of the following at June 30, 2008:

Amount Interest Rate Final Maturity

Enterprise Funds:
PPRF 1999A, B, C and D $ 9,760,000 3.15-6.80 6/1/2018
PPRF 2000A 200,000 4.10 - 5.30 6/1/2009
PPRF 2000B and C 8,800,000 4.35-5.80 6/1/2009
PPRF 2002A 19,975,000 2.00-5.00 6/1/2026
PPRF 2003A 21,959,000 2.00 - 4.75 6/1/2025
PPRF 2003B 19,340,000 2.00 - 5.00 6/1/2021
PPRF 2004A 32,265,000 1.125 - 5.875 6/1/2031
PPRF 2004B 37,875,000 3.00 - 5.50 6/1/2033
PPRF 2004C 146,170,000 2.50-5.25 6/1/2024
PPRF 2005C and D 51,015,000 - 3.05 - 5.00 6/15/2025
PPRF 2005A 15,145,000 3.00 - 5.00 6/1/2025
PPRF 2005B 12,665,000 3.00 —4.25 6/1/2020
PPRF 2005E 23,630,000 3:875~= 5.00 6/15/2025
PPRF 2005F 21,035,000 3.75 - 5.00 6/15/2025
PPRF 2006A 49,090,000 4.00 - 5.00 '6/15/2035
PPRF 2006B 36,410,000 4.00 - 5.00 6/1/2036
PPRF 2006C 37,485,000 4.00 - 5.00 6/15/2027
PPRF 2006D 51,785,000 4,25 -5.00 6/1/2036
PPRF 2007A 32,295,000 4.00 - 5.00 6/15/2027
PPRF 2007B 37,490,000 4.00 - 5.00 6/15/2034
PPRF 2007C 129,360,000 4.25-5.25 6/15/2027
PPRF 2007E 60,960,000 4.00 - 5.00 6/1/2032
PPRF 2008A 157,615,000 3.50 - 5.00 6/1/2038
CIG TAX 2006 — Behavioral 2,250,000 5.51 5/1/2026

1,014,574,000

Bond premium and discount, net on

enterprise funds bonds payable 39,507,482
Total $ _1,054,081,482
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7. BONDS PAYABLE - continued

To be paid out of Debt Service Funds:
UNM Health Sciences
UNM Health Sciences 2004B
Workets” Compensation Financing
Metro Coutt Financing Fund

State Capitol Improvement Financing

State Building Purchase Fund

COP-Equipment Loan Fund Series
COP-Equipment Loan Fund Series
COP-Equipment Loan Fund Series

Bond premium and discount, net on
Debt Service Funds bonds payable

Total

The requirements to amortize the bonds payable and the related premium/discount outstanding are as

follows:

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014 - 2018
2019 - 2023
2024 - 2028
2029 - 2033
2034 - 2038

Total

$

$

Amount

22,460,000
8,460,000
2,540,000

45,595,000
5,385,000

26,030,000

191,000
57,000
163,000

110,881,000

1,899,591

112 1

Interest Rate

2.00 - 5.00
2.10 - 5.50
5.00 - 5.60
1.65 - 5.50
7.00
4.00 - 5.00
4.05 - 5.40
3.85 - 5.20
4.50 - 5.70

Final Maturity

4/1/2019
4/1/2019
3/1/2017

6/15/2011

6/1/2021

11/1/2006
10/1/2016

4/1/2016
4/1/2012

Principal Interest Total
63,794,000 53,783,568 117,577,568
56,818,000 51,064,441 107,882,441

100,504,000 48,695,791 149,199,791
60,777,000 44,069,750 104,846,750
70,940,000 46,272,661 117,212,661

297,218,000 158,097,077 455,315,077

243,393 000 92,241,085 335,634,085

136,066,000 40,104,275 176,170,275
62,295,000 17,668,144 79,963,144
33,650,000 3,571,650 37,221,650

1,125,455,000 555,568,442 1,681,023 442
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BONDS PAYABLE - continued

The bonds payable activity for the year is as follows:

Balance, Balance,
July 1, 2007 Additions Deletions June 30, 2008
Enterprise Funds $ 661,114,000 391,245,000 (37,785,000) 1,014,574,000
Debt Service Funds 116,587,000 - (5,706.,000) 110,881,000
Total $ 777,701,000 391,245,000 JM 1,125,455,000

The amount of bonds payable due within one year is $63,794,000.
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NOTE PAYABLE

In November 2002, the Authority issued the 2002A Bond. Patt of the 2002A Bond proceeds wete given
to UNM for their Law Library, and the remaining portion of $2,000,000 was loaned to UNM. To offset
this loan receivable, the Authority was issued a note payable in conjunction with the 2002A Debt Setvice
requirement. The tetms of this note are outlined below:

$2,000,000 variable intetest rate (3.980% at June 30,
2008), note due in annual installments of §156,941 '
(currently), including interest, through May 2015.
Note is offset by cigarette tax proceeds received

from the State of New Mexico. $ 1,704,789
Tess current matutities 156,941
$ 1,547,848

Long-term debt maturities on note payable to PPRF Fund as of June 30, 2008, are as follows:

Years ending June 30: )
2009 $ 156,941
2010 _ 163,848
2011 171,223
2012 179,102
2013 187,505 .
2014 and theteafter 846,170

- 1,704,789
LINE OF CREDIT

The Authority has a tax-exempt $100,000,000 line of credit with a bank. Advances may be taken against
the facility for the funding of loans made by the Authority. Advances, plus accrued interest, must be
repaid within six months from the proceeds of Authority bond issuances. The interest rate on advances
changes monthly, and is equal to the one-month U.S. dollar LIBOR index plus 17 basis points. The
Authority pays a commitment fee on the unused balance of the line at an annual rate of 6 basis points as
long as the Authority’s long-term debt rating by Standard & Poor’s is AA- or better. The Authonty’s
rating is currently AA+. In the event the Authority’s rating drops below AA-, the unused fee would
increase to 9 basis points.
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LINE OF CREDIT - continued

At June 30, 2008, thete were no amounts due under the line of credit. During the year then ended, the
Authority drew a total of $144,509,901 and repaid $175,848,875 in principal and $944,596 in interest.
Thete have been no advances between June 30, 2008 and the date of the independent auditor’s report.

10. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

i1.

The Authority is committed under various lease agreements for office space, a vehicle and copiers.
These leases ate considered for accounting purposes to be operating leases. Lease expenditures for the
year ended June 30, 2008 amounted to approximately $316,000.

Future minimum lease payments for these leases are as follows:

Years ending June 30:
2009 . 330,506
2010 342,810
2011 22,908
2012 15,545
2013 847
2014 and thereafter -
$ 712,616
RETIREMENT PLAN

The Authority established its own retirement plan since it cannot participate through the Public
Employees Retitement Act (PERA) multiple-employer public retirement system. The Authority also
does not participate in the Retiree Health Care Act. This retirement plan was organized under Section
408(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The retitement plan is not subject to the general claims of the
creditors of the Authority. Each eligible employee participating in the plan must contribute 3% of their
compensation. The Authority makes a contribution of 15% of their compensation. Employees can
make a voluntary contribution of up to 4% of their compensation. The Authority also makes a 50%
matching contribution on voluntary contributions. Employee contributions are 100% vested, and the
Authority contributions will vest 100% to the employee after five years. The contributions are invested
in various mutual funds. The Authority’s contributions for this retirement plan were $361,328, $301,983
and $263,313 for the years ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 20006, respectively. Substantially all full time
employees participate mn this plan. :
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11.

RETIREMENT PLAN - continued

Presented below is the June 30, 2008, Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets and Statements of Change in

Net Assets:

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Assets:
Cash

Self-directed accounts (cash and investments)

Guaranteed Account
Participant loans receivable

Total assets

Net assets:

Pension plan patticipants’ benefits

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Additons:
Investment earnings
Employer contributions
Rollover contributions
Employee contributions

Total additions

Deductons:
Disttributions to partictpants
Investment expenses

Total deductions
Change in net assets
Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

$ 23,941
1,651,831

2,621

38162

_1.716.555

o

5

1716555

=5

(91,969)

361,328
34297

120,951

424,607

(405,013)
__ (13925

(418,938)
5,669
1,710,886

$ 1 555
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11.

RETIREMENT PLAN - continued

Duting the year ended June 30, 2005, the Authority adopted a retirement plan in accordance with an
“cligible deferred compensation plan” pursuant to Section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code for its
Executive Director and its Chief Operating Officer. The Authority contributes nine petcent of
compensation to the plan. The conttibutions are made regardless of the number of houts wotked or the
employment status on the last day of the plan year. Employer contributions ate limited by IRS Code
Section 457(¢)(15)(A). The employee is fully vested at all times. Employer contributions for the year
ended June 30, 2008 were $14,106. '

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

During the year ended June 30, 2008, the following changes occurred in the compensated absences
habilities:

Balance, _ Balance, .
July 1, 2007 Additions Deletions June 30, 2008
$ 192,088 214,582 206,434 200,236

The pottion of compensated absences due after one year is not material and, therefore, not presented
separately. Compensated absences are liquidated from the operating fund. There are no compensated
absences for the governmental funds.

AGENCY TRANSACTIONS

¢ Bond Issues

In 2003, the State Legislature authorized the issuance of $1.6 billion in bonds to fund statewide
transportation expansion and improvement projects known as Governor Richardson’s Investment
Partnership (GRIP). The Authority was authorized to issue $1.6 billion in bonds (the Bonds) in several
installments on behalf of the New Mexico Department of Transportation NMDOT). The Bonds were
issued by the Authority as agent for the NMDOT. The Bonds are liabilities of NMDOT, not the
Authority, and are not included in the Authority’s financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements - continued

AGENCY TRANSACTIONS - continued

e Bond Issues — continued
In May 2004, the Authority issued the following bonds pursuant to the GRIP legislation:

Premium
Par Gross Included in Cost of
Value Proceeds Proceeds Issuance

State Transportation Revenue

Bonds (Senior Lien)

Series 2004A $ 700,000,000 743,556,815 43,556,815 7,987,367
State Transpottation Refunding:

Revenue Bonds (Subordinate

Lien) Series 2004B 237,950,000 254297187 16,347,187 2,980,638
Series 2004C (Adjustable Rate) 200,000,000 200,000,000 - 2,505,264
Total $ _1,137,950,000 _1,197.854,002 59,904,002 13,473,269

The proceeds of the Series 2004A issuance were used to fund the construction of GRIP transportation
projects. The proceeds of the Series 2004B and 2004C issuances were used to advance refund certain
older debt issues of the NMDOT. The proceeds were used to purchase U.S. government securities
which were deposited in an itrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the
refunded issues. The bonds issued in 2004 the 2006 bonds discussed below, and any subsequent bonds
that may be issued in the future are special, limited obligations of the NMDOT, payable solely from
certain federal funds that are paid into the State Road Fund, certain taxes and fees that are required to be
paid into the State Road Fund, and certain taxes and fees required by law to be paid into the Highway
Infrastructure Fund.

In Decembet, 2006, the Authority issued the following additional bonds pursuant to the GRIP
legislation:

Premium
Par Gross Included in Cost of
Value Proceeds Proceeds Issuance

State Transportation Revenue

Bonds (Senior Lien)

Series 2006A $ 150,000,000 160,886,296 10,886,296 1,192,789
State Transportation Revenue

and Refunding Bonds (Subordinate

Lien) Series 2006B 40,085,000 41,797,863 1,712,863 352,732

77



NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements - continued

13. AGENCY TRANSACTIONS - continued

e Bond Issues — continued

Preniium
Par Gross Included in Cost of
Value Proceeds Proceeds Issuance

Adjustable Rate State Transportation

Revenue Bonds (Subordinate Lien)

Seties 2006C Subseries C-1through C-3 § 220,000,000 200,000,000 - 1,698,064
Adjustable Rate State Transportation

Revenue Bonds (Subordinate Lien)

Series 2006D (Taxable) Subseries D-1

through D-2 50,400,000 50,400,000 - 400,000

Total $ _460485,000 _473,084,159 12,599,159 3,643,585

With the exception of $10,071,197 deposited to an escrow account for refunded bonds, all of the net
proceeds of the 2006 bonds were used to fund GRIP transportation projects.

o GRIP Administrative fee

For setvices provided by the Authority in the issuance and administration of the Bonds, NMDOT pays
an annual fee to the Authority of twenty-five basis points of the outstanding principal balance of the
Bonds. One-half of the fee is set aside by the Authority in the Local Transportation Infrastructure Fund
(“LTIF”) to fund local highway and transportation projects.

For the year ended June 30, 2008, the Authotity received 2,882,887 in administrative fees related to the
Bonds. One-half of this amount was deposited in the LTIF, the remaining one-half was recorded as
revenue to the Authority.

At June 30, 2008, the Trustee for the Bonds held $380,172,840 in cash in various program and debt
service accounts related to the Bonds.

e Refunding of Variable Rate Bonds

The 2004C, 2006C, and 2006D Series bonds were issued as Auction Rate Securities (“ARS”). ARS are
one of the two principal types of securities for which interest rates are reset in a periodic auction
process. For each of these Series, the rates were reset in weekly auctions. All of the bonds were insured
by certain municipal bond insurance companies. In late 2007 and early 2008, the market for ARS was
negatively impacted by a number of factors, the principal event being downgrades of the ratings of
certain insurers of ARS. These downgrades and other events caused the weekly auctions of the bonds to
“fail’, meaning that insufficient bids were received to permit resale of all of the bonds. In the event of a
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Notes to Financial Statements ~ continued

AGENCY TRANSACTIONS - continued

e Refunding of Variable Rate Bonds
failed auction, no bonds are resold, even though some bids were received. Ina failed ARS suction, the
existing holders of the bonds must continue to hold their bonds until the next successful auction. The
procedures applicable to a failed auction included a provision that the interest rate on the bonds resets to
a default rate. In the case of the 2004C bonds, the default rate was one-month LIBOR plus 175 basis
points. The default rate for the 2006C and D bonds was 12%.

In April and May, 2008, the Authority refunded all of the ARS Series 2004C, 2006C, and 2006D,
reissuing the bonds as Variable Rate Demand Notes (VRDN). The interest rates for these bonds reset
in weekly auctions, as was the case for the ARS. The principal difference between the ARS and the
VRDN is that the ARS were credit-enhanced with insurance, while the VRDN are supported by bank
letters of credit. The following bonds were issued:

Par
Value

Adjustable Rate State Transportation Refunding
Revenue Bonds (Subordinate Lien) Series 2008A $ 115,200,000

Adjustable Rate State Transportation Refunding
Revenue Bonds (Subordinate Lien) Series 2008B 220,000,000

Adjustable Rate State Transportation Refunding
Revenue Bonds (Subordinate Lien) Series 2008C 84,800,000

Adjustable Rate State Transportation Refunding
Revenue Bonds (Subordinate Lien) Series 20081

(Taxable) 50,400,000

Total $ 460,400,000

All of the above refunding bonds were issued at par. The DOT provided additional funds totaling $2,641,872 to
pay for the cost of issuance of the bonds.

o Derivative Instruments

At the time of the 2004 GRIP bond issuance, the Authority entered into interest rate exchange
agreements (“swaps”) with respect both to the adjustable rate bonds then issued and the adjustable rate
bonds anticipated to be issued in 2006. All of the 2004 adjustable rate bonds were hedged at issuance
with immediately-starting swaps and approximately one-half of the anticipated total 2006 issuance was
hedged with forward-starting swaps that became effective in 2006. '
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AGENCY TRANSACTIONS - continued

e Derivative Instruments - continued
In all of the swaps, the Authority receives a vatiable-interest rate payment based on an index, and makes
a fixed-rate interest payment. This atrangement has the effect of converting the variable rate bonds to

“synthetic fixed-rate” issues.

As in the case of the GRIP bonds, the Authority has enteted into the swaps as an agent for the DOT,
and no amounts with respect to the swap transactions appear in the Authority’s financial statements.
These swap agreements remained in effect following the 2008 refunding and reissuance of the 2004 and
2006 adjustable rate bonds as Variable Rate Demand Notes (the 2008 A through D Series).

¢ Objectives of the Swaps

The Authority’s objective in entering into the swap agreements was to obtain a lower interest cost for
the 2004 bonds than could have been obtained at the time had they been issued as fixed-rate bonds.
With respect to the planned 2006, issuance, the Authotity believed in 2004 that it would be desirable to
“lock in” a synthetic fixed rate of 5% ot less for a portion of the bonds anticipated to be issued in 2006.

o—Significant Terms

2004 Swaps: .
Counterparty Royal Bank of Canada Goldman Sachs Lehman Brothers*
Notional Amount $100,000,000 $50,000,000 $50,000,000

Receipt Rate

Payment Rate (Synthetic

68 % of 1 month LIBOR**

68 % of 1 month LIBOR**

68 % of 1 month LIBOR**

Fixed Rate) 3.934% 3.934% 3.934%
Embedded Option(s) None None None
Effective Date May 20, 2004 May 20, 2004 May 20, 2004
Termination Date: June 15, 2024 June 15, 2024 June 15, 2024

* On October 6, 2008, as discussed below, Lehman Brothers was replaced as the counterparty by Deutsche Bank.
The significant terms of the Deutsche Bank swap are the same as the Lehman Brothers swap.
**For the period May 20, 2004 to June 15, 2006 the rate was the BMA Municipal Swap Index
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AGENCY TRANSACTIONS - continued

e Significant Terms - continued

2006 Forward Starting Swaps:

Counterparty
Notional Amount
Receipt Rate

Payment Rate

Embedded Option(s)

Option ptemium to the Authority

Net payment rate {“Synthetic Fixed
Rate”), equals the payment rate less
option premium

Effective Date

Termination Date:

JPMotrgan Chase Bank
$110,000,000

SIFMA Municipal Swap Index
5.072%

“Knockout” option — Counterparty
may cancel if the index remains
above 7% for more than 180 days

0.34%

4.732%

December 15, 2006

December 15, 2026

UBS AG

$110,000,000

SIFMA Municipal Swap Index
5.072%

“Knockout” option — Counterparty
may cancel if the index remains
above 7% for mote than 180 days

0.34%

4.732%

December 15, 2006

December 15, 2026

No cash was paid or received at the initiation of any of the above swaps.
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AGENCY TRANSACTIONS - continued

e Fair Value
The estimated fair value of the swaps at June 30, 2008 was as follows:

Counterparty Notional Value Fair Value*
Goldman Sachs $ 50,000,000 (3,617,674)
Lehman Brothers 50,000,000 (3,592,705)
Royal Bank of Canada 100,000,000 (7,235,348)
JPMotgan Chase Bank 110,000,000 (16,441,991)
UBS AG 110,000,000 (16,441,991
Total $ -420,000,000 (47,329.709)

*The Fair Value is the estimated amount that would have been received by ot paid to the Authority if
the agreements had been terminated at June 30, 2008 under the terms of the agreement. This value is
the net present value of the receipts and payments anticipated to be made pursuant to the agreements.
The net present values are calculated based on discount rates indicated-by actual swap-transactions that
occurred on or around June 30, 2008. Negative amounts indicate payments that would have been made
by the Authority to the counterparties. :

e Associated Debt

Net Swap Actual
2008 Debt Service Payments Synthetic
Variable Rate Debt* Principal Interest _Made (Received) Total Fixed Rate
Series 2008A and C $ 200,000,000 - 7,520,995 1,864,390 9,385,385 4,693%
Series 2008B 220,000,000 - 8,360,775 2,890,693 11,251,468 5.114%

*The interest and swap payments for these bonds include the payments for the 2004 and 2006 Series
bonds that that the 2008 series bonds replaced during the fiscal year.

e Replacement of Counterparty

The terms of the Authority’s agreements with the swap counterparties provide that a bankruptcy filing is
an event that terminates the agreement. In September 2008, Lehman Brothers, one of the
counterparties for the 2004 swaps, filed for bankruptcy. The Authority evaluated a number of options
and replaced Lehman Brothers with Deutsche Bank as the counterpatty for this swap. All significant
terms of the new agreement with Deutsche Bank remain the same as the original Lehman Brothers
agreement. At the closing of the transaction on October 6, 2008, Deutsche Bank paid the then-current
termination value as provided by the original agreement. The amount paid was calculated pursuant to
the agreement to be $4,840,000. This was approximately $300,000 greater than the amount due Lehman
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AGENCY TRANSACTIONS - continued

e Replacement of Counterparty - continued
Brothers, which was calculated, pet the agreement, as of September 23, 2008, a termination date
triggered by the bankruptcy filing. The excess funds were deposited in a debt service account and will be

used to make debt service payments on the bonds.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the possibility that a counterparty will not fulfill its obligations.

The credit ratings of the counterparties, at October 10, 2008, wete:

Moody’s S&P Fitch
Royal Bank of Canada Aaa AA- AA
Goldman Sachs Aaa AAA NR
Deutsche Bank Aal AA- AA-
JP Morgan Chase Aaa AA AA-
UBS AG . Aa2 AA- AA-

Presently, the Authority has no exposure to loss with respect to the counterparties, as the termination
values of the swaps are negative. That is, no amounts would be owed to the Authority if any swaps were
terminated at present. Each swap agreement contains provisions requiting the posting of collateral in
the event that termination values exceed certain amounts. No termination value currently exceeds these
limits, and, accordingly, no collateral is posted. The swap agreements permit the netting of amounts
owed between the Authority and the counterparty, mitigating, to some extent, the level of credit risk that
would exist if the Authority were owed a termination value by a counterparty. The authority believes it
has an adequate degree of diversification with regard to counterparties.

Interest Rate Risk
The knock-out option in the 2006 swaps leaves the Authority open to interest rate risk. If the SIFMA

municipal swap index averages above 7% for 180.consecutive days, then, as provided by the terms of the
knockout option, swap agreements could be cancelled by the counterparties and the Authority would
have outstanding unhedged vatiable rate debt in a 7% interest rate environment.

Basis Risk

Basis risk is the possibility that the variable rate paid on the bonds may not be adequately offset by the
variable index payment received under the swap agreement. The Authority has little or no such risk with
respect to the 2004 bonds as the 2004 swaps pay a variable rate equal to the SIFMA Municipal Swap
index which has very closely approximated, historically, the rates paid on variable rate municipal debt.
The Authority has basis tisk, however, with respect to the 2006 swaps. The variable rate the Authority
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AGENCY TRANSACTIONS - continued
e Risks - continued

Basis Risk - continued

receives with respect to the 2006 swaps is 68% of one-month LIBOR. While this rate has closely
tracked the SIFMA Municipal; Swap Index for a long period of time, there has recently been some
divergence between the two indices. Thete is no guarantee that the two indices will remain as closely
cottelated in the future as they wete in the past. Thereisa possibility, therefore, of a mismatch between
actual variable rate bond debt setvice payments and the variable rate receipts under the 2006 swap
agreements, resulting in a failure to achieve the synthetic fixed rate expected when the swaps initiated.

One event that would cause a divergence between the indices is a significant change in U.S. income tax
rates. This might result in 68% of LIBOR no longer approximating the tax-exempt rate set by the
matket for the Authority’s vatiable rate debt.

e Termination Risk

The unplanned termination of one or more of the swaps exposes the Authority to the possibility that the
synthetic fixed rate expected to be obtained on the variable rate debt will not, in fact, be achieved. The
swap agteements contain the standard ISDA provisions for termination, including events such as
bankruptcy, ratings downgrades, and failure to post collateral when required. In addition, the Authority,
but not the counterparties, can terminate the swaps at any time with 30-day notice. As discussed above,
an unplanned termination occurred due to the bankruptcy filing by Lehman Brothers. In this situation,
the Authority was successful in replacing the counterparty with another on the same terms, resulting in
no loss to the Authority. There can be no assurance that the same result could be obtained if other
unplanned terminations occur in the future.
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1. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

After June 30, 2008, the Authotity issued the following PPRF Direct Loans, Water Project Fund/Water
Trust Board Grants, and Subordinate Lien PPRF Revenue Bonds: '

Closing
Date Amount
PPRF Cash Loans:
DL — Town of Bernalillo 7/11/2008 1,016,321
DL — Catron County — Quemado Lake VFD 7/18/2008 101,500
DL — Sietra SWCD 7/18/2008 133,658
DL — Village of Willard 7/18/2008 225,993
DL — City of Santa Fe 8/1/2008 3,610,000
DL — City of Sunland Park 8/15/2008 186,690
DL — Cuba SWCD 8/22/2008 24,360
DL — Village of Reserve 8/22/2008 101,500
DL — Torrance County 9/5/2008 30,450
DL — City of Las Cruces 9/12/2008 1,708,755
DL — Town of Lake Arthut 9/19/2008 56,995
DL — Valencia County — Highland Meadows VFD 9/19/2008 137,025
DL — Upper Chama SWCD 9/19/2007 218,245
DL — Otero County — 16 Springs VFD 9/26/2008 162,400
Water Project Fund/Water Trust Board:
WPF/WTB — Claunch Pinto Soil and Water
Conservation District 7/18/2008 600,000
WPF/WTB — Santo Domingo Pueblo 8/1/2008 293,000
WPF/WTB - City of Lotdsburg 8/22/2008 850,000
WPF/WTB — NM Interstate Stream Commission 8/29/2008 750,000
WPF/WTB — NM Interstate Stream Commission 8/29/2008 2,000,000
WPF/WTIB — City of Clovis — ENMRWA 9/5/2008 1,250,000
WPF/WTB - City of Clovis - ENMRWA 9/5/2008 2,271,400
Planning Grant Fund:
P/G — Ancones MDWCA 7/11/2008 25,000
P/G — Sangre de Cristo Regional MDWCA 7/11/2008 18,000
P/G — Canjilon MDWCA & MSWA 8/8/2008 22,500
P/G - Sierra County 9/5/2008 50,000
Water Waste Water Grant Funding:
WW — City of Mortarty 9/19/2008 396,000
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14.

15.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS - continued

PPREF Seties 2008B. On October 16, 2008, the Authority issued $24,430,000 of Senior Lien Public
Project Revolving Fund Series 2008 B Revenue Bonds. The 2008 B Seties Bonds wete issued to:

1) reimburse the Public Project Revolving fund for loans made by the NMFA to certain governmental
entities for the purpose of funding public projects for such governmental units, and 2) pay costs incurred
with the issuance of the Series 2008 B Bonds. :

DEFICIT FUND / NET ASSETS

Thete are deficit fund balances of $56,065 in the Child Care Revolving Loan Fund, $426,720 in the New
Mexico Tax Credits Fund and $13,377 in the Enetgy Efficiency Fund. The operating fund will cover the
deficits in these funds. '
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Water and
Emergency Wastewater Workers'
Drought Water Planning Grant Metro Court Compensation
Program Fund Financing Fund Financing Fund
ASSETS:
Unrestricted:
Cash and cash equivalents 286,351 830,576 - 484,863
Receivables:
Tax revenue - - - -
Interest - - - -
Other receivables - - - -
Loans receivable - - - -
286,351 830,576 - 484,863
Restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents held for
others by trustee:
Debt service - - - 642,015
Bond reserve - - - -
Program - bond proceeds - - - -
TOTAL ASSETS 286,351 830,576 - 1,126,878
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable - 8,552 - -
Debt service payable - - - -
Notes payable - - - -
Payable to other governments - - - -
Due to other funds - 9,118 - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 17,670 - -
FUND BALANCES:
Reserve for debt service - - - 1,126,878
Unreserved, reported in non-major:

Special revenue funds 286,351 812,906 - -
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 286,351 812,906 - 1,126,878
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

FUND BALANCES 286,351 830,576 - 1,126,878
88
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Combining Balance Sheet - Other Governmental Funds

State Building Water and Total Non-
State Capital Program - State Office Wastewater major
Improvement Equipment Bio Mass Fund - Cigarette Tax Building Project Grant Governmental
Financing Fund Loan Fund Dairy Fund Financing Fund Fund Funds
400,144 - 2,003,260 - 6,992,629 3,711,137 14,708,960
- (3,384) - 117,076 530,000 - 643,692
- 6,239 - - - - 6,239
- 411,000 - - - - 411,000
400,144 413,855 2,003,260 117,076 7,522,629 3,711,137 15,769,891
- 3,383 - - - - 645,398
- - - - - 8,067,050 8,067,050
400,144 417,238 2,003,260 117,076 1,522,629 11,778,187 24,482,339
80,264 - - - - 27,133 115,949
- - - 1,704,789 - - 1,704,789
- - - - - 6,707 15,825
80,264 - - 1,704,789 - 33,840 1,836,563
319,880 417,238 2,003,260 - 7,522,629 - 11,389,885
- - - (1,587,713) - 11,744,347 11,255,891
319,880 417,238 2,003,260 (1,587.713) 7,522,629 11,744,347 22,645,776
400,144 417,238 2,003,260 117,076 7,522,629 11,778,187 24,482 339
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

See Independent Auditors' Repott.

Water and
Emergency Wastewater Metro Court Workers'
Drought Water  Planning Grant Financing Compensation
Program Fund Fund Financing Fund
REVENUES:
Grant revenue $ - - - -
Interest on loans - - - -
Interest on investments 12,464 44,800 - 50,776
Other revenue - - - -
TOTAL REVENUES 12,464 44,800 - 50,776
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Administrative fees - - - -
Professional services - 77,983 - 641
Salaries and fringe benefits - 39,661 - -
In-state travel - 1,902 - -
Out-of-state travel = 68 - -
Maintenance and repaits - 475 - -
Operating costs - 9,916 - -
Grant expenses - 205,625 - -
Capital outlay - 732 - -
Debt service - principal - - 170,000 210,000
Debt service - interest - - 2,187,229 145,495
. TOTAL EXPENDITURES - 336,362 2,357,229 356,136
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 12,464 (291,562) (2,357,229) (305,360)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
State General Fund appropriations - - - 705,708
Transfets (to) from other funds - - 2,357,229 -
Transfers to other state agencies - - - (557,079
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) - - 2,357,229 148,629
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 12,464 (291,562) - (156,731)
FUND BALANCES, June 30, 2007 273,887 1,104,468 - 1,283,609
FUND BALANCES, June 30, 2008 $ 286,351 812,906 - 1,126,878
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances - Othet Governmental Funds

State Building State Office Water and
State Capital Bio Mass Program Building Wastewater ‘Total Non-major
Improvement Equipment Fund - Cigarette Tax Financing Project Grant Governmental
Financing Fund Loan Fund Dairy Fund Fund Fund Funds

- 28,605 - - - - 28,605

17,278 - 3,260 - 326,782 545,704 1,001,064

17,278 28,605 3,260 - 326,782 545,704 1,029,669

14,538 - - - 20,603 - 35,141

- - - - 1,603 86,299 166,526

- - - - - 69,331 108,992

- - - - - 360 2,262

- - - - - 296 364

- - - - - 1,064 1,539

- - - - - 17,368 27,284

- - - - - 2,164,356 2,369,981

- - - - - 512 1,244

570,000 96,000 - - 1,440,000 - 2,486,000
407,050 30,000 - - 1,374,375 - 4,144,149
991,588 126,000 - - 2,836,581 2,339,586 9,343,482
(974,310) (97,395) 3,260 - (2,509,799) (1,793,882) (8,313,813)
991,256 - 2,000,000 1,348,761 6,360,000 - 11,405,725
- - - (7,400,230) (241,405) - (5,284,406)
- - - - (2,819,856) - (3.376,935)

991,256 - 2,000,000 (6,051,469 3,298,739 - 2,744.384
16,946 (97,395) 2,003,260 (6,051,469) 788,940 (1,793,882) (5,569,429)
302,934 514,633 - 4,463,756 6.733,689 13,538,229 28,215,205
319,880 417,238 2,003,260 (1,587.713) - 7,522,629 11,744,347 22,645,776
9
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'NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Schedule 1 - Supplemental Schedule of Pledged Collateral

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
A Bank of
Wells Fargo ' America
(Santa Fe) (Chatlotte) Total
Bank accounts: »
Operating account - checking $ - - -
Wire transfer account 325,772 - 325,772
Reputchase agreements - 3,748,175 3,748,175
Total amount of deposits 325,772 3,748,175 4,073,947
FDIC coverage (100,000) (100,000) (200,000)
Total uninsured public funds 225,772 3,648,175 3,873,947
Collateral requirement @ 50% 112,886 - 112,886
Collateral requitement @ 102% ' 3,721,139 3,721,139
Pledges and securities:
US T. Note, matures June 1, 2036
Held at Wells Fargo, San Francisco, CA
CUSIP 3141DCF31
Par $326,900 332,288 - 332,288

US T. Note, matures January 15, 2025
Held at Bank of America, Chatlotte, NC
CUSIP 912828DHO0; 912810FR4
Par $925,000 - 603,302 603,302

Par $3,730,000 (matures 01/15/2025) 3,690,794 3,690,794

792,359

Overcollateralized $ 219,402 572,957 \

Pledged collateral amounts are in compliance with the collateral requirement of 102%.

See Independent Auditors' Report. 93



YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

State State Treasurer Bank of
Description Type Treasurer Capital Fund Albuquerque
Local Government Government
Investment Pool Investment Pool * 147,117,448 - -
Primary Care Government - - -
Capital Fund Investment Pool * - 545,566 -
State Treasurer
Money Market Money Market - - 21,600,027
Trust Accounts Money Market - - 246,849,598
Cigarette Tax Bonds
Debt Service Resetve Money Market - - - -
Operating Accounts ~ Checking - - -
Agency Fund
Money Market Money Market - - 380,172,840
147,117,448 545,566 648,622,465
Unrestricted
Restricted
Total cash
* The LGIP Pool investments consist of U.S. Government Securities, Commetical Paper and Money Market.
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Schedule 2 - Schedule of Individual Deposit and Investment Accounts

Bank of The Reserve Total Book Total Bank
America Wells Fargo Bank Balance Balance
- - - 147,117,448 147,117,448
- - - 545,566 545,566
- - - 21,600,027 21,600,027
- - - 246,849,598 246,849,598
279,359 - - 279,359 279,359
- 1,100,831 82,453,795 83,554,626 83,595,485
- - - 380,172,840 380,172,840
279,359 1,100,831 82,453,795 880,119,464 880,160,323
Governmental Business-Type Agency Total
Activities Activities Funds Cash
$ 118,068,253 86,419,188 - 204,487,441
20,909,892 274,549,291 380,172,840 675,632,023
$ __138978145 360,968,479 380,172,840 880,119.464
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Schedule 3 - Agency Funds - Schedule of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
Balance Balance
July 1, 2007 Additions Deletions June 30, 2008
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION REVENUE BONDS, SERIES A
Fund 315
ASSETS: .

Cash and investments $ 231,353,435 340,495,884 427,358,504 144,490,815
TOTAL ASSETS $ 231,353,435 340,495,884 427,358,504 144.490,815
LIABILITIES:

Deposits held in trust

for others $ 231,353,435 340,495,884 427,358,504 144,490,815
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 231,353,435 340,495,884 427,358,504 144,490,815
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2006
Fund 322
ASSETS:

Cash and investments $ 404,551,152 440,141,788 612,345,821 232,347,119
TOTAL ASSETS $ 404,551,152 440,141,788 612,345,821 232347119
LIABILITIES:

Deposits held in trust

for others $ 404,551,152 440,141,788 612,345,821 232,347,119
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 404,551,152 440,141,788 612,345,821 232.347.119
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2008
Fund 326
ASSETS:

Cash and investments $ - 10,668,187 7.333,280 3.334,907
TOTAL ASSETS $ - 10,668,187 7,333,280 3,334,907
LIABILITIES:

Deposits held in trust

for others $ - 10,668,187 7,333,280 3,334,907
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ - 10,668,187 7,333,280 3,334,907
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Supplemental Schedule of Expenditures of Fedetal Awards

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
Federal Agency/ Federal Fedetal
Pass-Through CFDA Participating
Agency _ Number Expenditures

Environmental Protection Agency:
Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water

State Revolving Funds 66.468 $ 13,595,226
Total EPA $ 13,595,226
Funds passed through to sub-receipients $ 4,984,752
Original Balance at
Loans funded ' Balance June 30, 2008

Revolving loans:
Loans funded in previous years $ 71.495,630 30,907,764

Total loans funded $ 71,495,630 30,907,764

The revolving loans are funded through a mix of 80% federal and 20% state monies.
The technical set-asides are funded with 100% federal monies.
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Supplemental Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

GENERAL

The accompanying Supplemental Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awatds presents the activities of all
federal awards of the Authority.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying Supplemental Schedule of Expenditutes of Federal Awards is presented using the modified
accrual basis of accounting, which is described in Note 1 to the Authority’s general purpose financial statements.

Reconciliation to Financial Statements (page 26) — New Mexico Drinking Watet Revolving Loan Fund:

Transfers to othet state agencies $ 4,984,752
Total non-interest expense 577,430

Total EPA expenditufes pet Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Net Assets 5,562,182

Total loans issued from Federal Draws
included in loans receivable on

Statement of Net Assets 8,033,044
Total EPA expenditures $ 13,595,226

See Independent Auditors’ Repott. ’ 99



REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

New Mexico Finance Authority and
Mr. Hector H. Balderas
New Mexico State Auditor

We have audited the basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the New Mexico Finance Authority (Authotity), as of and for the year ended June 30,
2008. We have also audited the financial statements of each of the Authority’s
nonmajor governmental funds and fiduciary funds presented as supplementary
information in the combining fund financial statements as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2008, and have issued our report thereon dated September 29, 2008. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Anditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and petforming our audit, we considered the Authority’s internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our audit procedutes for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over

financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of

the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions,
to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
control deficiency, ot a combination of contrel deficiencies, that adversely affects the
Authority’s ability to initiate, authotize, record, process or report financial data reliably
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than
a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the Authority’s financial statements that is
more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the Authority’s internal
control. We consider the deficiency (08-1) described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs to be a control deficiency.
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New Mexico Finance Authority and
Mzt. Hector H. Bald_eras
New Mexico State Auditor

Intetnal Control Over Financial Reporting - continued

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, ot combination of significant
deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement
of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected by the Authority’s intetnal
control. We did not identify any deficiencies in intetnal control over financial reporting
that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited
purpose described in the first paragraph of this section, and would not necessatily
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies ot
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that we consideted to be a material weakness, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s basic financial
statements ate free of material misstatement, we petformed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions. of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be repotted under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management of the
Authority, the State of New Mexico Office of the State Auditor, and federal awarding
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified patties.

ﬁ;?mw 4 ,,,m,uc.

September 29, 2008
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

New Mexico Finance Authority and
Mr. Hector H. Balderas
New Mexico State Auditor

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the New Mexico Finance Authority (Authority),
with the types of compliance requirements described in the US Office of Management and
Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2008. The Authority’s major federal
programs ate identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requitements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements applicable to each of its major federal
programs is the responsibility of the Authority’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Authority’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standatds appﬁcable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Noz-For-
Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and
petform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occutred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about the Authority’s compliance with those requirements and
petforming such other procedures as we considered necessaty in the citcumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination on the Authotity’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Authotity complied, in all material respects, with the requirements

referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2008:
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New Mexico Finance Authority and
Mt. Hector H. Balderas
New Mexico State Auditor

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the tequirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our
audit, we considered the Authority’s internal control over compliance with the
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of exptessing our opinion
on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not exptess an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over compliance.

A control deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the
design or operation of a control does not allow management ot employees, in the
notmal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a fedetal program on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control
deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s ability to administer a federal program
such that there is more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than inconsequential will not
be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant
deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelthood that material noncompliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented or
detected by the entity’s internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all
deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or matetial
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Authority, the State of
New Mexico Office of the State Auditor, and the cognizant audit agency and other
federal audit agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other

than these specified parties.

77‘7.“‘, Yy m%,&c

September 29, 2008
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

A.

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

1.

The auditors’ report expresses an unqualified opinion on the basic financial statements of the New
Mexico Finance Authority (Authority).

There were no instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements disclosed during the

audit of the Authority.
No significant deficiencies were disclosed during the audit of the financial statements and are
reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over

Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Petformed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

There were no significant deficiencies in the internal control over major programs disclosed by the

Authority.
There were no audit findings that the auditor is required to teport under 510(a) of Circular A-133.

The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the Authority
expresses an unqualified opinion.

The program tested as a major program is:

Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Fund

CFDA Number 66.468

The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000.

The Authority was determined to be a low-risk auditee.
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs - continued

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT
08-1 MISSING DOCUMENTATION

Condition: Of 25 payroll and personnel transactions tested, we noted that one employee file did not
contain I-9 documentation.

Criteria: The U.S. Immigration and Naturalization Service requites an employer to verify and document
U.S. citizenship or resident status.

Cause: Oversight by the Authority.

Effect: Failure to comply with federal employment requirements may result in the Authority being
assessed penalties or fines.

Recommendation: We recommend the Authority review its personnel files and complete I-9 forms for
those employees who do not have the documentation on file.

Management’s Response: The Authority had the I-9 form completed by the employee and placed in
the employee’s personnel file to accompany the existing supporting documents already contained in the
file. All files wete reviewed by management to ensure that all I-9 forms along with supporting
documents were contained in the personnel file. No other missing forms or supporting documents were
noted during this review.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS
AUDIT

None.
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

None.
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NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Exit Confetence

An exit confetence was held with the Authority on November 4, 2008. The conference was held at the
Authority’s offices in Santa Fe, New Mexico. In attendance were:

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

Katherine Miller, Chairperson (Audit Committee)
William F. Fulginiti, Vice Chairperson (Audit Committee)
William C. Sisneros, Chief Executive Officer

John T. Duff, Chief Operating Officer

Greg Campbell, Controller

Lonnie Marquez, Member (Audit Committee)

Paul Gutierrez, Member (Audit Comimittee)

MEYNERS + COMPANY, LLC

Georgie Ortiz, Principal

Janet Pacheco-Morton, Senior Manager

Jason C. Greving, In Charge

PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements presented in this report have been prepared by the Independent Auditor, with the

assistance and review of the Authority. However, they are the responsibility of management, as addressed in the
Independent Auditors’ Repott.
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OFFICE OF THE STATE AUDITOR
Hector H. Balderas

February 9, 2009
SAO Ref. No. 385

William C. Sisneros, CEO
New Mexico Finance Authority

207 Shelby Street
Santa Fe, NM 87505-2151

SUBJECT: Audit Report—New Mexico Finance Authority—2007-2008 Fiscal Year—Prepared by
Meyners & Company, LLC :

The audit report for your agency was received by the Office of the State Auditor (Office) on November
19, 2008. The State Auditor’s review of the audit report required by Section 12-6-14 (D) NMSA 1978
and 2.2.2.13 NMAC has been completed. This letter is your authorization to make the final payment to
the independent public accountant (IPA) who contracted to perform your agency’s financial and
compliance audit. In accordance with Section 2 of the audit contract, the IPA will deliver the specified
number of copies of the audit to the agency.

Per Section 12-6-5 (A) NMSA_1978, the audit report does not become public record until ten days
after the date of this letter. Once the ten day waiting period has passed, the andit report shall be:

e released by the Office of the State Auditor to the Le‘g_islative Finance Committee, the Department of’
Finance and Administration, and the State Treasurer.

The independent public accountant’s findings and comments are included in the audit report on page 105.
It is ultimately the responsibility of the governing authority of the agency to take corrective action

on all :mdilgs and comments,

HECTOR H. BALDERAS
STATE AUDITOR

ce:  Legislative Finance Committee
Department of Finance and Administration
Financial Control Division & Budget Division
Office of the State Treasurer
Meyners & Company, LLC

2113 Warner Circle, Santa Fe, New Mexaco 87505-5499
(505) 476-3800 - (800) 432-5517 - Fax (505) 827-3512
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